
Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       1                                                                                                              May 25, 2021 

           

County of Inyo 
Board of Supervisors 

Board of Supervisors Room 
County Administrative Center 

224 North Edwards 
Independence, California 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Public Notices: (1)  In Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting please contact the Clerk of the Board at 
(760) 878-0373.  (28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the County to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility 
to this meeting. Should you because of a disability require appropriate alternative formatting of this agenda, please notify the Clerk of the Board 72 hours prior to the meeting to 
enable the County to make the agenda available in a reasonable alternative format. (Government Code Section 54954.2).  (2) If a writing, that is a public record relating to an 
agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors, is distributed less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, the writing shall be available for public 
inspection at the Office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, 224 N. Edwards, Independence, California and is available per Government Code § 54957.5(b)(1).               

Note: Historically the Board does break for lunch; the timing of a lunch break is made at the discretion of the Chairperson and at the Board’s convenience. 

 

May 25, 2021 - 10:00 AM 

  
 

 1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE (Join meeting via Zoom here) 
  

 

 2. PROCLAMATION - Board approval and reading of a proclamation duly recognizing 
and honoring May 31, 2021 as Memorial Day. 

  
 

  3. PUBLIC COMMENT 
  

 

  4. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS (Reports limited to two minutes) 
  

 

  5. COVID-19 STAFF UPDATE 
  

 

DEPARTMENTAL - PERSONNEL ACTIONS  
  

 

 6. Health & Human Services - Request Board find that, consistent with the adopted 
Authorized Position Review Policy: A) the availability of funding for the requested 
position exists in a non-General Fund budget, as certified by the HHS Director and 
concurred with by the County Administrator and Auditor-Controller; B) where internal 
candidates meet the qualifications for the position, the vacancy could possibly be 
filled through an internal recruitment; however, as a State Merit System position, an 
open recruitment would be more appropriate to ensure qualified applicants apply; and 
C) approve the hiring of two (2) Office Clerks II/III at Range 50 ($2,975 - $3,619) or 
Range 52 ($3,118 - $3,788). 

  
 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC:  In order to minimize the spread of the COVID-19 virus, Governor Newsom has issued 
Executive Orders that temporarily suspend certain requirements of the Brown Act. Please be advised that the 
Board of Supervisors Chambers are closed to the public, the Board will be conducting its meetings exclusively 
online.  

Board Members and Staff will participate via Zoom webinar, accessible to the public at 
https://zoom.us/j/868254781. Individuals will be asked to provide their name and an email address in order to 
access the videoconference. Anyone who does not want to provide their email address may use the following 
generic, non-functioning address to gain access: donotreply@inyocounty.us.  

Anyone wishing to make either a general public comment or a comment on a specific agenda item prior to the 
meeting or as the item is being heard, may do so either in writing or by utilizing the Zoom "hand-raising” feature 
when appropriate during the meeting (the Chair will call on those who wish to speak). Written public comment, 
limited to 250 words or less, may be emailed to the Assistant Clerk of the Board at boardclerk@inyocounty.us. 
Your comments may or may not be read aloud, but all comments will be made a part of the record. Please make 
sure to submit a separate email for each item that you wish to comment upon. 

 

https://zoom.us/j/868254781
https://zoom.us/j/868254781
mailto:donotreply@inyocounty.us
mailto:boardclerk@inyocounty.us


Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       2                                                                                                              May 25, 2021 

 7. Health & Human Services - Behavioral Health - Request Board: A) change the 
Authorized Strength in HHS by reclassifying one (1) Public Health Nurse position at 
Range 80 in Behavioral Health as a Behavioral Health Nurse I at Range 78 or 
Behavioral Health Nurse II at Range 80; and B) consistent with the adopted 
Authorized Position Review Policy: 
1. find that the availability of funding for one (1) Behavioral Health Nurse I or II exists 
in the Non-General Fund Behavioral Health budget, as certified by the HHS Director 
and concurred with by the County Administrator and Auditor-Controller; 
2. find that where internal candidates may meet the qualifications for the position, the 
vacancy could possibly be filled through an internal recruitment, but an open 
recruitment is more appropriate to ensure qualified applicants apply; and 
3. approve the hiring of one (1) Behavioral Health Nurse 1 at Range 78 ($5,741 - 
$6,976) or a Behavioral Health Nurse II at Range 80 ($6,018 - $7,320), depending on 
qualifications. 

  
 

CONSENT AGENDA (Approval recommended by the County Administrator) 
  

 

 8. Clerk of the Board - Request Board appoint Ms. Melinda DeCoster to a four-year 
term on the Big Pine Cemetery Board of Trustees ending June 15, 2025 and Ms. 
Rosemarie Todd to a four-year term on the Big Pine Cemetery Board of Trustees 
ending June 30, 2022. 

  
 

 9. County Administrator - Advertising County Resources - Request Board approve 
a contract between Christopher Langley and the County of Inyo for provision of Film 
Commissioner services, for the period of July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2024 in an amount 
not to exceed $109,400 (Year 1 = $37,800; Year 2 = $35,800; Year 3 = $35,800), 
contingent upon the Board's approval of future budgets, and authorize the 
Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. 

  
 

 10. County Administrator - Economic Development - Request Board approve 
Amendment No. 1 to the contract between The Ferguson Group, LLC and County of 
Inyo for provision of Federal Advocacy Services, extending the term from July 1, 
2018 to June 30, 2022 in an amount not to exceed $101,000, contingent upon the 
Board's approval of the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Budget, and authorize the 
Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. 

  
 

 11. County Administrator - Purchasing - Request Board award Bid No. 2021-07 - Print 
Bid to The Hanigan Company, Inc. and authorize purchase orders to be approved for 
various County Departments to order printing from this bid for Fiscal Year 2021-2022, 
Fiscal Year 2022-2023, Fiscal Year 2023-2024 with the option to extend the bid for 
an additional two fiscal years. 

  
 

 12. County Administrator - Recycling & Waste Management - Request Board 
approve the contract with Waste Management of California, Inc. for waste hauling 
services from the community of Homewood Canyon, in an amount not to exceed 
$66,765.02 for the period of July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2024, subject to the 
Board's adoption of future County budgets, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, 
contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. 

  
 

 13. County Administrator - Recycling & Waste Management - Request Board 
approve the contract between the County of Inyo and Pahrump Valley Disposal of 
Pahrump, NV as a sole-source provider of waste hauling services from the 
communities of Tecopa, Shoshone, Charleston View, Furnace Creek, and Death 
Valley Junction to Pahrump, Nevada Waste Disposal Facility, in an amount not to 
exceed $1,175,078.09 for the period of July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2026, 
contingent upon the Board’s approval of future budgets, and authorize the 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       3                                                                                                              May 25, 2021 

Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. 
  

 

 14. Health & Human Services - Behavioral Health - Request Board approve the 
contract between the County of Inyo and Dr. Anne Goshgarian of Bishop, CA to 
serve as the Health and Human Services Substance Use Disorder Medical Director 
in an amount not to exceed $21,000 for the period of July 1, 2021 through June 30, 
2022, contingent upon the Board’s approval of the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Budget, 
and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures 
being obtained. 

  
 

 15. Public Works - Request Board: A) declare VSS Emultech of Bakersfield, CA the 
successful bidder for Asphaltic Emulsion per Bid RD21-04: and B) authorize the 
purchase of thirty-two (32) 280-gallon capacity totes of SS-1H Asphaltic Emulsion 
from VSS Emultech of Bakersfield, CA in an amount not to exceed $54,081.70. 

  
 

 16. Public Works - Request Board: A) declare Seal Master of Bakersfield, CA the 
successful bidder for Crack Seal Material and enter into six-month rental agreement 
for crack sealing kettle from Seal Master of Bakersfield, CA per Bid No. RD21-06; 
and B) authorize the purchase of 60,000 pounds of Crack Seal Material and a six-
month kettle rental from Seal Master of Bakersfield, CA in an amount not to exceed 
$60,124.50. 

  
 

 17. Public Works - Request Board: A) declare Bowman Asphalt of Bakersfield, CA the 
successful bidder for 300 Tons of Plant Mixed Asphalt per Bid No. RD21-05; and B) 
authorize the purchase of Three Hundred (300) Tons of Plant Mixed Asphalt from 
Bowman Asphalt of Bakersfield, CA in an amount not to exceed $50,971.50. 

  
 

DEPARTMENTAL (To be considered at the Board's convenience) 
  

 

 18. County Administrator - Advertising County Resources - Request Board accept 
Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Written Report from Inyo County Film Commissioner Chris 
Langley. 

  
 

 19. Planning Department - Request Board: A) receive a presentation from staff 
regarding the scoping period for the environmental evaluation of a Comprehensive 
River Management Plan (CRMP) for the Amargosa Wild and Scenic River; and B) 
approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign a letter commenting on the CRMP. 

  
 

 20. Water Department - Request Board provide direction to the County’s Standing 
Committee representatives in advance of the meeting of the Inyo County/Los 
Angeles Standing Committee scheduled for May 26, 2021. 

  
 

 21. Sheriff - Request Board ratify and approve the 2021 Operational and Financial Plan 
between the County of Inyo and USDA Forest Service, Inyo National Forest for the 
provision of Patrol Service for a funding amount up to $12,000 for the period of 
October 1, 2020, through September 30, 2021, contingent upon the Board’s approval 
of future budgets, and authorize the Sheriff or designee to sign, contingent upon all 
appropriate signatures being obtained. 

  
 

 22. Health & Human Services - Request Board: A) approve a Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) to transfer ownership of state-provided trailers between the 
City of Los Angeles, Inyo County, and the Inyo Mono Advocates for Community 
Action (IMACA) for homelessness relief and authorize the HHS Director to sign; and 
B) approve the MOU between IMACA and the County of Inyo regarding the 
temporary storage of travel trailers and authorize the HHS Director to sign. 

  
 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       4                                                                                                              May 25, 2021 

 23. Health & Human Services - Health/Prevention - Request Board ratify and approve 
the agreement between the County of Inyo and Denise Marley of La Quinta, CA for 
compensation of services satisfactorily rendered to support Graphic Design & 
Marketing Services for Public Health & Prevention/COVID-19 Response activities as 
part of the ELC 2 & ELC Expansion Grant in Inyo County, in the amount of $150,000 
for the period of May 15, 2021 through June 30, 2023, contingent upon the approval 
of future budgets, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all 
appropriate signatures being obtained. 

  
 

 24. Probation - Request Board: A) ratify and approve the agreement between the 
County of Inyo and Board of State Community Corrections (BSCC) for the 
Proposition 64 Public Health and Safety Grant for the period of May 1, 2021 though 
October 31, 2024, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all 
appropriate signatures being obtained; and B) approve Resolution No. 2021-29 
authorizing the Inyo County Assistant CAO to execute agreements with the BSCC on 
behalf of the County of Inyo for the Proposition 64 Public Health and Safety Grant 
awarded April 8, 2021. 

  
 

 25. Public Works - Request Board ratify and approve payment to Spiess Construction 
Inc. of Santa Maria, CA in the amount of $237,900 for South Lake Road Emergency 
Repair Work. 

  
 

 26. Clerk of the Board - Request Board approve the minutes of the regular Board of 
Supervisors meeting of May 18, 2021. 

  
 

COMMENT (Portion of the Agenda when the Board takes comment from the public and County staff) 
  

 

  27. PUBLIC COMMENT 
  

 

BOARD MEMBERS AND STAFF REPORTS  
  

 

 



 

 

 

 

 
 

PROCLAMATION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, COUNTY OF INYO,  

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

DULY RECOGNIZING AND HONORING 

MAY 31, 2021 AS MEMORIAL DAY 
 

WHEREAS, on Memorial Day, we pay solemn tribute to the men and women who marched, flew, and sailed in 

defense of our freedoms and way of life, never to see their loved ones again; and 

WHEREAS, in enduring respect and gratitude for their sacrifice, we hold in our hearts those who fought to 

preserve our freedoms and our American way of life; and  

WHEREAS, every year, Californians uphold the tradition that began as Decoration Day in 1868 in memory of 

those lost during the Civil War, and was broadened after the First World War to honor all Americans who have 

perished in our nation’s wars; and 

WHEREAS, on this Memorial Day, 2021, we will take time to reflect on the meaning of sacrifice and heroism, 

demonstrated by those in uniform over the centuries, and connect it to the heroes of today; and 

WHEREAS, in memory of the fallen, Inyo County orders that flags be flown at half-staff on all County, State 

and Federal buildings and grounds throughout the County; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors also asks you to join all Americans by participating in the National 

Moment of Remembrance at 3:00 p.m. local time on Memorial Day, a shared moment of silence to honor 

those who have made the ultimate sacrifice.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED that May 31, 2021 be observed as Memorial Day and be duly 

recognized and honored with reverence and gratitude. 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 25th day of May 2021, by the Inyo County Board of Supervisors. 
 

 

Jeff Griffiths, 
Chairperson,  

County of Inyo Board of Supervisors 
Attest:  CLINT C. QUILTER 
           Clerk of the Board 
 
By:_____________________________             
            Assistant Clerk of the Board 



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services
 

DEPARTMENTAL - PERSONNEL ACTIONS - ACTION 
REQUIRED

 
MEETING:  May 25, 2021
 
FROM:  Tyler Davis
 
SUBJECT:  Request to hire two full time Office Clerks II/III in the HHS Social Services Employment and Eligibility 
division.
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board find that, consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy: A) the availability of 
funding for the requested position exists in a non-General Fund budget, as certified by the HHS Director and 
concurred with by the County Administrator and Auditor-Controller; B) where internal candidates meet the 
qualifications for the position, the vacancy could possibly be filled through an internal recruitment; however, as a 
State Merit System position, an open recruitment would be more appropriate to ensure qualified applicants apply; 
and C) approve the hiring of two (2) Office Clerks II/III at Range 50 ($2,975 - $3,619) or Range 52 ($3,118 - 
$3,788).
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Two of our Office Clerks currently housed in our Employment and Eligibility Division recently accepted positions 
as Integrated Case Workers, resulting in two vacancies. These two Office Clerk positions provide critical front 
office reception support to our Employment and Eligibility division and will be merged with our other reception 
Office Clerk team members to provide coordinated front office reception at the consolidated office building. These 
positions ensure smooth operation in an office that regularly manages a heavy volume of telephone and in-person 
client contact. They act as the primary first point of contact in person or by telephone to individuals applying for a 
wide range of social services programs.  

In addition to handling the telephone and lobby traffic, the Office Clerks manage client schedules and office 
assignments for the Employment and Eligibility Office and provide support to the Integrated Case Workers in all 
areas of the office as well as managing all of the regular clerical assignments.  The range of program services 
provided out of the office include, but are not limited to, MediCal benefits, Cal Fresh benefits, cash assistance 
through CalWORKs, County Medical Services Program (CMSP) and General Relief.   Maintaining our current 
staffing level helps ensure high quality customer services, as well as ensuring timely and accurate documentation 
of client records.

With the transition to the new consolidated office building, the office clerk positions will be cross-trained in all HHS 
programs, allowing them to assist our clients with multiple needs and connecting them with identified needs.



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
The Department is respectfully requesting authorization to hire two Office Clerk II/III in the HHS Social Services 
Employment and Eligibility division.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could choose to not allow HHS to fill this vacancy, which would impact our ability to ensure coverage 
of reception duties in the Bishop office and ultimately in our consolidated office building. It would also result in the 
reception duties being performed by higher-paid professional staff.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A
 
FINANCING:
Federal, State and Social Services Realignment. These positions are budgeted 5% in CMH (045200), 75% in 
Social Services (055800) and 20% in WIOA (613720) in the Salaries and Benefits object codes. No County 
General funds.

 
ATTACHMENTS:
 
APPROVALS:
Tyler Davis Created/Initiated - 5/14/2021
Keri Oney Approved - 5/17/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/18/2021
Marilyn Mann Approved - 5/18/2021
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 5/18/2021
Sue Dishion Approved - 5/18/2021
Amy Shepherd Approved - 5/18/2021
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 5/18/2021



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services - Behavioral Health
 

DEPARTMENTAL - PERSONNEL ACTIONS - ACTION 
REQUIRED

 
MEETING:  May 25, 2021
 
FROM:  Lucy Vincent
 
SUBJECT:  Request to recruit and hire one full time Behavioral Health Nurse I/II position
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) change the Authorized Strength in HHS by reclassifying one (1) Public Health Nurse position 
at Range 80 in Behavioral Health as a Behavioral Health Nurse I at Range 78 or Behavioral Health Nurse II at 
Range 80; and B) consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy:
1. find that the availability of funding for one (1) Behavioral Health Nurse I or II exists in the Non-General Fund 
Behavioral Health budget, as certified by the HHS Director and concurred with by the County Administrator and 
Auditor-Controller;
2. find that where internal candidates may meet the qualifications for the position, the vacancy could possibly be 
filled through an internal recruitment, but an open recruitment is more appropriate to ensure qualified applicants 
apply; and
3. approve the hiring of one (1) Behavioral Health Nurse 1 at Range 78 ($5,741 - $6,976) or a Behavioral Health 
Nurse II at Range 80 ($6,018 - $7,320), depending on qualifications.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Our one full time PHN in the Behavioral Health Division has accepted a position in our local schools resulting in a 
vacancy as of May 12, 2021.  The nurse in this position also functioned as the foster care nurse which requires a 
PHN. The Department reviewed the tasks performed and has determined that the foster care nurse functions 
could be performed by a PHN in our Public Health and Prevention Division and the current vacancy functions 
primarily as a Behavioral Health nurse. 

This position works under the clinical direction of the contracted telehealth psychiatrist or designated physician 
and  performs an array of nursing functions for persons with mental illness and/or addiction issues and related 
health conditions. These duties may include in-home and clinic-based observation and assessment of client’s 
behavioral health and physical health conditions; assistance with tele-psychiatry appointments; preparation and 
administration of psychotropic medications under the direction of the physician to include both routine and 
specialized treatments, such as injections; analysis and tracking of treatment and medication responses and 
outcomes; and participation in interdisciplinary treatment team meetings to plan consumer care.

A portion of these duties will be performed while working closely with programs offering services to older adults to 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

identify persons at-risk of/or evidencing mental illness or emotional disturbance and to provide community 
outreach, support, training and home-based services to the older adult population and their care givers. A portion 
of these duties may also include working closely with physical health care providers to ensure coordination of care 
and teaching of self-management skills to clients. Duties will also include participation in quality assurance 
activities; provision of education regarding medication and medical aspects of treatment to clients and client care 
givers; and participation in an after-hour on call rotation as assigned.  The Department respectfully requests 
permission to hire a Behavioral Health Nurse I/II.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could choose to not to fill this vacancy, resulting in a gap in care for persons with mental illness and 
difficulty in the provision of our tele-psychiatry service provision.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Local health care providers, Southern Inyo Hospital, Northern Inyo Hospital, pharmacies, managed care 
providers.
 
FINANCING:
Medi-Cal, BH Realignment, MHBG and MHSA. This position will be budgeted 100% in the Mental Health budget 
in the salaries and benefits object codes. No County General Funds.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
 
APPROVALS:
Lucy Vincent Created/Initiated - 5/11/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/12/2021
Lucy Vincent Approved - 5/12/2021
Marilyn Mann Approved - 5/12/2021
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 5/13/2021
Sue Dishion Approved - 5/13/2021
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 5/13/2021



County of Inyo

Clerk of the Board
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  May 25, 2021
 
FROM:  Assistant Clerk of the Board 
 
SUBJECT:  Appointments to Big Pine Cemetery District Board of Trustees
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board appoint Ms. Melinda DeCoster to a four-year term on the Big Pine Cemetery Board of Trustees 
ending June 15, 2025 and Ms. Rosemarie Todd to a four-year term on the Big Pine Cemetery Board of Trustees 
ending June 30, 2022.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Your Board has appointing authority over the Big Pine Cemetery District Board of Trustees. Four of the five terms 
are currently filled and the fifth term has been vacant for more than a year. The District secretary recently asked 
that the vacancy be re-advertised. Per your Board's policy, a Notice of Vacancy was published in the newspaper 
and also included Ms. Melinda DeCoster's term that is scheduled to expire on June 15. Two letters of interest 
were received - one from Ms. DeCoster requesting reappointment and one from Ms. Rosemarie Todd requesting 
appointment to the vacant seat.

Both of their letters of interest are attached here for your consideration.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board may decline to make appointments at this time and/or ask that the vacancies be re-advertised; 
however this is not recommended.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Big Pine Cemetery District
 
FINANCING:
There are no costs associated with the filling of these vacancies, aside from minimal advertising costs.
 
ATTACHMENTS:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

1. Melinda DeCoster - BP Cemetery (2021)
2. Rosemarie Todd - BP Cemetery
 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 5/18/2021
Darcy Ellis Final Approval - 5/18/2021



YF

F']ffi h5

ffin H* MELINDA L. DeCOSTERtv"*' ffiffi Post Office Box 511

ffi ffi fr ffi Big Pine, California 93513

;tr vffi - 
Qdq%s'2741Hffi r. fl'lrrr lq :ff P""t

ilH H* May10,2021ffini 'ssffi t-d

ffi#
ffyo County Board of Supervisors
Inlependence, Caiiforni i gl szA
Attn: Darcy Ellis

Re: Big Pine CemeterY District

Dear Darcy:

It was a pleasure talking to you the other $ay. fhankyou for letting f9 know that my position

as General Maniger of the nig-fine Cemetery District is expiring in June, 2021.

I would like to be considered for an extension of my office. I have enjoyed being the G.enerai 
.

Manaser of the cemetery district-it has been truly rewarding experience. 
_ 
It's 

-a 
wondertirl teeltng to be

;bd;il.fi;;;;6iloio*"ittine to i*it. about during theii sad time and make the burial easier'

I am so lucky to have such a wonderful board and cemetery workers, they are all amazing

people. I couldn't do my job without them.

I also have several projects that I have planned with a unanimous vote of the board members,

some are still in their beginning stages:

l. Small headstone project: It's the cemetery districts 99al to get small headstones

*uae iot 
"uery 

giauL that is unmarked at Woodman Cemetery and Crocker .

e;;t,"y. WL f;"t" found quite afew old graves th{ ge lis^ted in our records

tnJur.-ri*urt"a. Wr *itt^Ue seeking don-ations to help defray the costs of this

project.

Z. Memorial Trees: The markers for the trees showing who-donated each tree need

io U. i.ofu.ed, These markers witl be made the same at the small headstones. I
;A;h;;i;t"r* of ii,e small stones as therc are several in place already.

3. The Veterans Memorial Boatd and the Memorial Tile Boards: The boards are in

;;;d "i;;*; 6d;ti"t wtti.tt would include shade structures to protect the tiles

and add to their longevity.

4. We have discovered names of some of the residents at the Co-unty Farm in its

iltt;;" (*tt.n it was q work farm), who passe*lyu' wfile living there..

Th,iie residints are'buried at Crockef bemed,ery. We know the areawhere theyare

U*i"h-Urt tttere is no map showing who is buried where.....so we plan on

a"ai."ti"g ih. spu.t to them and putting small headstones for these people' They

deserved to be recognized.



Darcy Ellis
May 10,2021
Page Two

5, We are also in the beginning stages of remapping Woodman Cemelery. The

entire cemetery n 
"ar-iJUi"renu"mbered. 

TIi plots need to be made b1eee1, as the

e*""0 out tnere is viry soft and sloughs off bidly when a grave is being dug'

This would simpliff the digging process.

I would love to remain on the Board and see these projects to !her1 completion, and beyond, I

love doir,gitriqli,r 
"*on,irifui 

w"v to give back to the co'mrirunity that has been so good to me.

Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely yours,

General Manager
Big Pine Cemetery District



dellis@invocou ntv. us

May 10,2021

Big Pine Cemetery District

I would like to apply for the position on the Big Pine Cemetery

District board. This post would allow me to serve the communlty of

Big Pine in a historical capacity. My goal is to update both

cemeteries on the Find A Grave website with: birth/death dates and

places, plot location, headstone inscription, if possible unite 3

generation of families through their memorials, photos and obituary

for each plot. I would hope to have both cemeteries 100o/o

documented on the website by the end of 2022.

Thank you for this opportunity.

Respectful ly submitted,

Rosemarie Todd
P.O. Box 631
Big Pine, Cal-if orn j-a 93513
1 60 938-29Ir
toddrosemarie Ggmail . com

ffim{frtr

u*wffi .ffi
trl# ffiffi e*
*ffHffi Hffi



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Advertising County 
Resources

 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  May 25, 2021
 
FROM:  Assistant Clerk of the Board 
 
SUBJECT:  Inyo County Film Commissioner Contract
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve a contract between Christopher Langley and the County of Inyo for provision of Film 
Commissioner services, for the period of July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2024 in an amount not to exceed $109,400 
(Year 1 = $37,800; Year 2 = $35,800; Year 3 = $35,800), contingent upon the Board's approval of future budgets, 
and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Three years ago, your Board reviewed the history of the Inyo County's Film Commission structure and 
considered whether it wanted to issue a Request For Proposals for the continuation of contracted Film 
Commissioner Services. Your Board expressed its satisfaction with the existing structure for provision of Film 
Commissioner Services, and indicated its desire to have an opportunity to consider a new contract with Chris 
Langley rather than undertake an RFP process. The attached contract, presented today for consideration by your 
Board, implements the direction provided by the Board of Supervisors. The current contract is scheduled to 
expire June 30, 2021; the new one would expire June 30, 2024.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board may choose to not approve the contract, modify the contract, or direct staff to issue a Request for 
Proposals for Film Commissioner services.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
The cost of the Film Commissioner Services contract is funded through the County General Fund without 
assistance from other local agencies.
 
FINANCING:
If approved, the contract will be subject to funding being appropriated in the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 County 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Budget in Advertising County Resources (011400), in the Inyo County Film Commission object code (5535), and 
in subsequent County Budgets.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Film Commissioner Contract FY21-22 to FY23-24
2. 20180626CAO-FilmComm. - ChrisLangleyContract
 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 5/11/2021
Denelle Carrington Approved - 5/11/2021
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 5/11/2021
Amy Shepherd Approved - 5/12/2021
Clint Quilter Final Approval - 5/12/2021



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND CHRIS LANGLEY

FOR THE PROVISION OF OMMISSIONER

INTRODUCTION

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 117
( lndependent Contractor)

Page 1

SERVICES

referred to the need for the

of Lone (hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"), and in consideration of the
mutual promises, covenants, terms, and conditions hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as
follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. SCOPEOFWORK.

The Contractor shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in
Attachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein. Requests by the County to the
Contractor to perform under this Agreement will be made by Clint Quilter whose
title Cou Administrative Officer Requests to the Contractor for work or services to be
performed under this Agreement will be based upon the County's need for such services. The County
makes no guarantee or warranty, of any nature, that any minimum level or amount of services or work will be
requested of the Contractor by the County under this Agreement. County by this Agreement incurs no
obligation or requirement to request from Contractor the performance of any services or work at all, even if
County should have some need for such services or work during the term of this Agreement.

Services and work provided by the Contractor at the County's request under this Agreement will be
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal,
state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and
resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreement.

2. TERM.

The term of this Agreement shall be from
unless sooner terminated as provided below.

Julv 1,2021 to June 30,2024

3. CONSIDERATION

A. Compensation. County shall pay to Contractor in accordance with the Schedule of Fees
(set forth as Attachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A which are performed by
Contractor at the County's request.

B. Travel and per diem. County shall reimburse Contractor for travel expenses and per diem
which Contractor incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreement.
Contractor shall request approval by the County prior to incurring any travel or per diem expenses. Requests
by Contractor for approval to incur travel and per diem expenses shall be submitted to

Clint Quilter whose title is: Countv Admin Officer . Travel and
per diem expenses will be reimbursed in the same amount and to the same extent as County reimburses its
permanent status employees for such expenses. County reserves the right to deny reimbursement to
Contractor for travel or per diem expenses which are either in excess of the amounts that may be paid to
County's permanent status employees, or which are incurred by the Contractor without the prior approval of
the County.

C. No additional consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Contractor
shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages,
or other $pe of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement. Specifically, Contractor shall not
be entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits,

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter
Film Commissioner'

05t21t2019



retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves
of absence of any type or kind whatsoever.

D. Limit upon amount payable under Aqreement. The total sum of all payments made by the
County to Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement, including travel and per diem
expenses, if any, shall not exceed one hundred nine thousand four hundred
Dollars ($ 109,400.00 ) (hereinafter referred to as "contract limit"). County
expressiyrese,rvryntorreimbursementrequestedbyContractorforservicesor
work performed, including travel or per diem, which is in excess of the contract limit.

E. Billinq and oavment. Contractor shall submit to the County, once a month, an itemized
statement of all services and work described in Attachment A, which were done at the Coung's request. This
statement will be submitted to the County not later than the fifth (sth) day of the month. The statement to be
submitted willcover the period from the first (1st) day of the preceding month through and including the last
day of the preceding month. This statement will identify the date on which the services and work were
performed and describe the nature of the services and work which were performed on each day.
Contractor's statement to the County will also include an itemization of any travel or per diem expenses,
which have been approved in advance by County, incurred by Contractor during that period. The itemized
statement for travel expenses and per diem will include receipts for lodging, meals, and other incidental
expenses in accordance with the County's accounting procedures and rules. Upon timely receipt of the
statement by the fifth (Sth) day of the month, County shall make payment to Contractor on the last day of the
month.

F. Federal and State taxes.
(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any federal

or state income taxes or social security from any payments made by County to Contractor under the terms
and conditions of this Agreement.

(2) County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made under this
Agreement to non-California resident independent contractors when it is anticipated that total annual
payments to Contractor under this Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety nine dollars
($1,4ee.oo)

(3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or
payments from sums paid by Coung to Contractor under this Agreement. Payment of all taxes and other
assessments on such sums is the sole responsibility of Contractor. County has no responsibility or liability for
payment of Contractor's taxes or assessments.

(4) The total amounts paid by County to Contractor, and taxes withheld from payments
to non-California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the lnternal Revenue Service and the California
State Franchise Tax Board. To facilitate this reporting, Contractor shall complete and submit to the
County an lnternal Revenue Service (lRS) Form W-9 upon executing this Agreement.

4. WORK SCHEDULE.

Contractor's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in
Attachment A which are requested by the County. lt is understood by Contractor that the performance of
these services and work will require a varied schedule. Contractor will arrange his/her own schedule, but will
coordinate with County to ensure that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will
be performed within the time frame set forth by County.

5. REQUIRED LIGENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, municipal
governments, for contractor to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured by
Contractor and be valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement or as othenarise may be required.
Further, during the term of this Agreement, Contractor must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits
in full force and effect. Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's
licenses, professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses. Such licenses, certificates, and permits
will be procured and maintained in force by Contractor at no expense to the County. Contractor will provide
County, upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 1 17
(l ndependent Contractor)

Page 2 05t21t2019



permits which are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A. Where there is a dispute
between Contractor and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the
services identified in Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of
this Agreement.

B. Contractor warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment,
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any federal
department or agency. Contractor also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from receiving
federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-procurement
Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: http://www.sam.qov.

6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC.

Contractor shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and
telephone service as is necessary for Contractor to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this
Agreement. County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor, for any expense or cost incurred by
Contractor in procuring or maintaining such items. Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by
Contractor in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation
of Contractor.

7 COUNTY PROPERTY

A. Personal Propertv of Countv. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective or
safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this
Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County.
Contractor will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in
Contractor's possession. Contractor will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items,
partial or total, which is the result of Contractor's negligence.

B. Products of Contractor's Work and Services. Any and all compositions, publications, plans,
designs, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or
intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result,
product, or manifestation of, Contractor's services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination
of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County. At the termination of the
Agreement, Contractor will convey possession and title to all such properties to County.

8. INSURANCE.

For the duration of this Agreement Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope
and amount specified in Attachment C and with the provisions specified in that attachment.

9. STATUSOFCONTRACTOR.

All acts of Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this
Agreement, shall be performed as independent contractors, and not as agents, officers, or employees of
County. Contractor, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of
County. Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Contractor has no authority or responsibility to
exercise any rights or power vested in the County. No agent, officer, or employee of the Contractor is to be
considered an employee of County. lt is understood by both Contractor and County that this Agreement shall
not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a
joint venture. As an independent contractor:

A. Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and
services to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 117
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 3 05t21t2019



B. Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's
control with respect to the physical action or activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement.

C. Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent contractors, and not as employees of
County.

10. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION

Contractor shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify County and its officers, officials, employees
and volunteers from and against any and all liability, loss, damage, expense, costs (including without
limitation costs and fees of litigation) of every nature arising out of or in connection with Contractor's
performance of work hereunder or its failure to comply with any of its obligations contained in the
agreement, except such loss or damages which was caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct
of the County.

11. RECORDS AND AUDIT.

A. Records. Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, county, municipal, ordinances, regulations, and directions.
Contractor shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion of
this Agreement. Contractor may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records.

B. lnspections and Audits. Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Contractor, which
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation,
examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Contractor.
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or othenruise evaluate the work
performed or being performed under this Agreement.

12. NONDISCRIMINATION.

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees shall not
unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national
origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex. Contractor and its agents,
officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act
(Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the
California Code of Regulations. Contractor shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-
352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act.

13. CANCELLATION.

This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to
Contractor thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to cancel. Contractor may cancel this Agreement
without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to
cancelto County.

14. ASSIGNMENT

This is an agreement for the services of Contractor. County has relied upon the skills, knowledge,
experience, and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement. Contractor shall not
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.
Further, Contractor shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior
written consent of County.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 117
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 4 05t21t2019



15. DEFAULT.

lf the Contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by
County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by
County, County may declare the Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days written
notice to Contractor. Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Contractor all amounts owing to
Contractor for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.

16. WAIVER OF DEFAULT.

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any
subsequent default. Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver
of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-two (22) below.

17. CONFIDENTIALITY.

Contractor further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws,
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by
Contractor in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted,
or confidential. Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such information and records. Disclosure of such
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only with the express written
consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Contractor without the County's written
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Contractor in all respects.

Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health lnsurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996,
and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant
thereto. For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.

18. CONFLTCTS

Contractor agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement.

19. POSTAGREEMENTCOVENANT.

Contractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained
from the County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit,
gain, or enhancement. Further, Contractor agrees for a period of two years after the termination of this
Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any entity, association, corporation, or person who,
during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has
been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Contractor by virtue of this
Agreement has gained access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information.

20. SEVERABILITY.

lf any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application
thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the
provisions of this Agreement are severable.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 1 17
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 5 05t21t2019



21. FUNDING LIMITATION.

The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.
ln the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the
option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying
Contractor of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding. Any reduction or modification
of this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-
two (22) (Amendment).

22. AMENDMENT

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity.

23. NOTICE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including
change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Contractor or County shall be
required, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first
class mailto, the respective parties as follows:

County of lnyo
Countv Administration Department

Address
City and State

P.O. Drawer N

Contractor:

Chris Langley Name
Address
City and State

P.O. Box 99

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements,
promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by
reference, shall be of any force or effect. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived,
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.

ilil ilil

lndeoendence. CA 93526

Lone Pine cA 93545

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 117
(l ndependent Contractor)

Page 6 05t21t2019



AND
AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

CHRIS LANGLEY
FOR THE PROVISION OF FILM COMMISSIONER SERVICES

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS
TH|S_DAYOF ,

couNTY qF |NYO CONTRACTOR

Slgnature Signalure

Type or Print Name Type or Print Name

Dated:

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:

Auditor

AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS:

APPROVED AS TO INSUMNCE REQUIREMENTS:

ffiP#4
Coung Risk Uanryf

County of lnyo Standard Conlract - No, 117
(lndependent Contracto0

Page 7 o5t2il2019



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND CHRIS

FORTHE PROVISION OF FILM COMMISSIONER

IN WTNESS , THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS
z@e) .

SERVIGES

THIS /7 DAYOF

COUNTY OF INYO

Type or Print Name

County

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:

County Auditor

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS:

Perconnel Servicas

APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:

County Risk Manager

lF 4h
CONTRACTOR

By:
Spnature

Type or Print Name

Dated: 6, K1\lsTof,eA LAN6 LEy'

County of lnyo Shndad Contract - No. 117
(lndependent Contiac[or)

Page 7 o5n1no19



ATTACHMENT A

AND
AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

CHRIS LANGLEY
FOR THE PROVISION OF FILM COMMISSIONER SERVICES

TERM

FROM: JULY 1,2021 TO: JUNE 30, 2024

SCOPE OF WORK:

Section l. General Duties & Responsibilities

The Contractor shall act in the capacity of lnyo County Film Commissioner. As the lnyo County Film
Commissioner, the Contractor must perform the duties necessary for County to maintain a formal
relationship with the California Film Commission, and ensure the County's continued participation in the
California Film Commission's Film Liaisons ln California, Statewide (FLICS) Program. These duties
include, but are not limited to:

A. Actively working to attract film production into all areas of the County;
B. Responding to production requests in a timely manner, not to exceed one week from the date of

initial inquiry; and,
C. Serving as a liaison between the film industry and the County and the community, including

public and private landowners and other public agencies in the region.

ln carrying out these duties, the Contractor shall regularly and routinely publicize contact information for
the Office of the County Adminstrator as the venue where members of the film industry and the
community can register compliments or complaints regarding the provision of Film Commissioner services
At a minimum, this information shall be included in the local crew lists, production guide, and resources
database that the Contractor is required to develop, maintain, and distribute (in paper and electronic form
acceptable to the County), and on any web site the Contractor develops, maintains, or operates
in conjunction with these services.

ln performance of these duties, the Contractor shall:
. Maintain a working knowledge of the County and local business and government practices;
. Stay informed on production issues in lnyo County communities and convey this information to

producers;
. Serve as an experienced trouble shooter for producers and the communities in which they work;
. Know how to secure permission to film on a variety of properties within the County;
. Be familiar with potential filming locations within the County;
. Remain sensitive to the needs of the communities within the County;

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. '1 17
(lndependent Contractor)

Page I 05t21t2019



. Never solicit or accept fees, payments, donations, or other contributions for the provision of Film
Commissioner services or on behalf of any entity or organization unless so authorized pursuant to
and in conjunction with the County's film permit requirements;

. Adhere to the FLICS Code of Responsibilities, including avoiding actual or apparent conflicts of
interest between the official duties and services provided and private financial interests, as well as
the provision of:

/ location scouting assistance;
J referral and liaison services with industry facilities and services;
/ liaison services to and among communities, production companies, and government agencies;
/ augmented outreach; and,
./ timely and accurate information to production companies, the local community, governmental

entities, and the California Film Commission;

. Provide film liaison and location services, including photography of locations;

. Provide service and support to each production company from the initial contact to the close
of the production, including problem solving on film related matters;

. Act as a liaison between production companies and all levels of government, including the
facilitation of permitting;

. Network with regional and state organizations related to filming;

. Only use the title of lnyo County Film Commissioner when acting in an official capacity pursuant

to this agreement, and never for personal gain; and,
. Refrain from taking positions or engaging in activities, in an official capacity, contrary to the

established polices of the County of lnyo or which might otherwise bring discredit to the County.

ln addition, the Contractor shall:

1. Develop, maintain, and distribute local available crew lists in written and electronic form;
2. Develop, maintain, and distribute a local resources database, including photography of locations

throughout all regions of the County, in written and electronic form;
3. Develop, maintain and distribute a current local production guide in written and electronic

form; and,
4. Create and have published at least four (4) articles for the local and/or national and/or

international media.

With regard to the crew lists, resources database, and production guide noted above, the Contractor will be
required to provide these materials in an electronic format acceptable to the County so that the material may
be hosted on the Countywebsite. ln addition, if the material isto be hosted on anotherwebsite, thewebsite
must utilize software approved by the lnyo County lnformation Services Director.

Section ll. Administrative Services

The Contractor is responsible for providing for all administrative functions necessary to support the lnyo
County Film Commission, including:

1. Maintaining physical office space, including a telephone line and answering machine or service,
and payment of all utility costs;

2. Maintaining and, as appropriate, publicizing:
a. a physical mailing address or Post Office Box;
b. a cellular telephone;
c. an e-mailaccount; and,
d. an internet-based photo hosting service

3. Arranging for clerical support, and any other personal contract services that may be necessary to
support the duties and responsibilities of the Film Commissioner

4. Providing all office supplies and, as necessary, photocopying and facsimile transmittal services

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 1 17
(lndependent Contractor)
Page 9



ln addition, the Contractor shall maintain an active membership in FLICS, and attend between two (2)
and four (4) FLICS membership meetings during the term of the contract. Attendance may be in person or via
teleconference. The Contractor is responsible for preparing, maintaining, and administering all notifications
and paperwork to the California Film Commission necessary to designate the Contractor as the lnyo Film
Commissioner.

Furthermore, as directed during the course of this contract, the Contractor may be required to research and
work with County staff to evaluate and make a recommendation to the lnyo County Board of Supervisors
regarding the feasibility of modifying the County's film permit requirements, including the levying of fees
to support the lnyo County Film Commission.

lf the County's film permit requirements are modified, the Contractor will be expected to implement and
administer the County film permit process for non-County facilities and properties, as directed. lf adopted,
implementation and administration of the modified film permit may include but not be limited to:

. Publicizing the need for a County film permit;

. Determining the applicability of the County film permit requirements and associated fee schedule to
specific filming activities;

. Ensuring all filming activities subject to the film permit requirements apply for a County film permit;

. Working with film permit applicants to ascertain the information necessary for the Film Commissioner
to prepare a film permit, including the appropriate(s) fee for the filming activity in question, for submission
to the County;

. Promptly notifying the County office responsible for finalizing film permits when a film permit has been
prepared for submission; and,

. Preparing a monthly compilation of all film permits prepared by the Film Commissioner, to be
submitted to the County with the Contractor's monthly invoice for payment of services.

Section lll. Reporting

The Contractor shall keep the County Administrator or his designee, and the lnyo County Board of
Supervisors apprised of its activities and accomplishments in the performance of the Agreement. At a
minimum, the Contractor shall:

1. Within 30-days of execution of the Agreement for the provision of Film Commissioner Services,
the Contractor shall prepare all notifications and paperwork required by the California Film
Commission necessary to designate the Contractor as the lnyo Film Commissioner. These documents
shall be transmitted to the Office of the County Adminstrator for review and approval in advance of their
submittalto the California Film Commission and, if necessary, for submittal to the California Film
Commission by the County. Any subsequent modifications that may be required to this documentation
will be processed in the same manner.

2. As soon as practicable, but no later than seven (7) days of receipt, the Contractor shall
transmit to the Office of the County Administrator any notices or other communications the
Contractor receives from the California Film Commission.

3. Within 60-days of execution of the Agreement for the provision of Film Commissioner Services,
the Contractor shall submit to the Office of the County Administrator, in paper and electronic form,
the local crew lists, local production guide and local resources database, including photography of locations
throughout all regions of the County, that the Contractor is required to develop, maintain and distribute
under the terms of this agreement. These products will become property of the County, and must be
submitted in an electronic format acceptable to the County for viewing, reproduction and posting to a
County web site. As part of their submittal, the Contractor must identify all physical and electronic locations
where these resources are available.

4. As needed, and at least once every 12 months and one (1) month prior to the expiration of the
Agreement for the provision of Film Commissioner Services, the Contractor shall update the local crew
lists, local production guide and local resources database, including photography of locations throughout
all regions of the County, and transmit this information to the County as required in item 3 above.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 117
(l ndependent Contractor)

Page 10



5. Copies of all articles generated by the Contractor and published by local and/or national and/or
international media will be transmitted to the Office of the County Administrator with the Contractor's
next monthly invoice for services;

6. Make at least two (2) Verbal Reports a year, once in April and once in October, to the Board of
Supervisors during the course of this contract. The Contractor is encouraged to make additional
Verbal Reports to the Board of Supervisors as may be warranted based on filming activity
in the County. The Contractor will be responsible for contacting the Assistant Board Clerk to
make arrangements to be placed on the Board of Supervisors' agenda.

7. ln addition to the two (2) Verbal Reports required in item 6 above, the Contractor shall
prepare and present, in person, two (2) Written Reports a year to the Board of Supervisors.
The Written Reports shall be submitted to the County Administrator, to be agendized for an upcoming
Board of Supervisors' meeting, no later than June 1st and January 1st of each year during the term
of the Agreement for the provision of Film Commissioner Services.

8. During the last year of the Agreement, the Written Reports shall be prepared and submitted
no later than November 1st in lieu of the January 1st deadline, and May 1st in lieu of the
June 1st deadline to facilitate the County's consideration of any contract extension or renewal
At a minimum, the Written Reports must include:

a. A summary of the Contractor's activities and accomplishments relative to carrying-out
the duties and responsibilities of lnyo County Film Commissioner;

b. A tally, by type of production (e.9., major motion picture, minor film, commercial, still
photography or other categories deemed meaningful by the Film Commissioner) since
execution of the Agreement or since submittal of the last Written Report of:

i. production requests received by the Contractor;
ii. production contacts initiated by the Contractor; and,
iii. (if applicable) County Film Permits prepared by the Contractor;

c. ldentification and itemization, by category, of all productions filmed in lnyo County
since execution of the Agreement or since submittal of the last Written Report. For each
production identified, the Contractor shall provide their best estimate as to:

i. The number of out-of-county personnel involved in the production;
ii. The number of hotel/motel room nights encumbered by the production, and the

estimated value;
iii. The number of local residents directly employed by the production, and the

estimated aggregate compensation of those employed; and,
iv. The number and types of local businesses providing goods or services to the

production, and the estimated aggregate value of the goods or services;

d. Discussion of specific marketing efforts including copies of tear sheets, copies of
web-pages, identification of events attended, and, photos of any Contractor exhibits or
displays at attended events;

e. Copies of the current local crew list, current local production guide, and current local
resources database, including photography of locations throughout all regions of the
County; and,

f. Copies of all Contractor-generated articles published since the last written report.

The parties agree that it would be impracticable and extremely difficult to ascertain the amount of actual
damages caused by a material breach of these reporting requirements. Therefore, the parties agree that,
in the event that Contractor fails to comply with these reporting requirements and associated deadlines,
Contractor shall pay County, as liquidated damages, the amount of Contractor's monthly fee, as established
in the Fee Schedule of the Agreement for the provision of Film Commissioner Services, for each failure to
comply, which amount will be deducted from amounts due the Contractor.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 1 17
(l ndependent Contractor)

Page '11



Section lV. Additional Marketing Activities

ln addition to marketing the County as a filming location through active participation in FLICS and its
California Location Request Service and creating articles for the local, national, and/or international media,
the Contractor may perform, and be compensated separately for, additional marketing activities identified in
the Contractor's proposal and associated budget, and agreed to in the Fee Schedule included in the
Agreement for the provision of Film Commissioner Services. Separately compensated marketing activities
may include but are not limited to:

1. lf the Film Commission web content will be hosted on the County website, the Contract may be
asked and compensated to develop content beyond the crew lists, local resources database,
location photographs, production guide, articles described in Section l.

2. lf the web content will not be hosted on the County website, the Film Commissioner may be asked
to and compensated for developing and maintaining an interactive lnyo County Film Commission
website. ln developing and maintaining any such website, the Contractor must:

a. Register lnyo County as the owner of the domain name for the web site, and provide the
County's lnformation Services Director with the information necessary to maintain the
registration;

b. Develop the web site using software specified by the County's lnformation Services
Director;

c. Host the web site on a server to specified or approved by the County's lnformation Services
Director and to which the Gounty's lnformation Services staff has access; and,

d. Provide back-up electronic copies of all web site content to the lnformation Services
Director. Electronic copies of all subsequent updates to the web site must be transmitted to
the County's lnformation Services Directorwithin 14-days of implementation.

Any payment for such website development and maintenance services performed by the
Contractor is dependent on the Contractor's adherence to these requirements.

3. Attend appropriate industry events, and maintain a professional and attractive presence at industry
trade shows by engaging the use of creative booth space and collateral material ( e.9., artwork,
hand-outs, etc.), including the COLA awards dinner and show and/or the Association of Film
Commissions lnternational (AFCI) Locations Show.

All resource materials and promotional materials developed in conjunction with this Scope of Work,
including but not limited to the lnyo County Film Commission web-site, domain name, artwork and
hand-outs distributed at industry events, local crew lists, local production guide, and local resources
database (including photography of locations throughout all regions of the County), in written and
electronic form, shall:

A. ldentify the Office of the County Administrator as the venue where members of the film industry
and the community can register compliments or complaints regarding the provision of Film
Commissioner services, and provide the telephone number and e-mail address for the Office
of the County Administrator for this purpose.

B. Become the property of the County of lnyo.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No
1 1 7 (lndependent Contractor)

Page 12



ATTACHMENT B

AND
AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

CHRIS I ANGI FY
FOR THE PROVISION OF FILM COMMISSIONER SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: July 1,2021 June 30 2024

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

Section l. General Duties & Responsibilities, Administrative Senices, Reporting

ln consideration for the services and work identified in Section l. General Duties & Responsibilities,
Section ll. Administrative Services, and Section lll. Reporting of Attachment A: Scope of Work, the
contractor shall be paid a flat fee of:

. $2,500.00 per month for the period of July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2024

Section ll. Marketing Activities

For the specific marketing activities the Contractor is required to perform, and identified in Section lV.
Marketing Activities of Attachment A: Scope of Work, the contractor shall be paid the actually cost of the
specific activity, documented by paid receipts, in an amount not to exceed the amount identified below for
each activity:

lf, the Film Commission web content is not hosted on the County website, and the Film
Commissioner is asked to develop and maintain an interactive lnyo County Film Commission web-site
pursuant to Attachment A: Section lV, 2.:

. $3,000.00 for the development of the website and $1,000 per year for its maintenance.

2. Attend appropriate industry events, and maintaining a professional and attractive presence at
industry trade shows by engaging the use of creative booth space and collateral material (e.9.,
artwork, hand-outs, etc.), including the COLA awards dinner and show and/or the Association of
Film Commissions lnternational (AFCI) Locations Show:

. $1 ,200.00 for the period July 1 , 2021 through June 30, 2022:

. $1,200.00 for the period July l,2022 through June 30, 2023;

. $1 ,200.00 for the period July 1 , 2023 through June 30, 2024.

Section lll. Travel& Per Diem

The Contractor's travel and per diem expense shall be paid in accordance with Section 3. Paragraph B.
of this Agreement. These costs include all mileage, lodging and food expenses associated with all of the
general services and work requested by the County in this Agreement, as well as the specific marketing
activities requested by the County in this Agreement.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 1 17
(l ndependent Contractor)

Page 13 05t21t2019



The Contractor's travel and per diem expense reimbursement shall not exceed:

3,600.00 for the period July 1, 2021 through June 30,2022;
3,600.00 forthe period July 1, 2022through June 30,2023,
3,600.00 for the period July 1 , 2023 through June 30,2024.

The provisions of Section 3. Paragraph B. of this Agreement notwithstanding, due to the often times
spontaneous nature of the services and work being performed, the Contractor is pre-approved to incur
travel and per diem expenses in an amount not to exceed:

. $3,600.00 for the period July 1, 2021 through June 30,2022;

. $3,600.00 for the period July 1 , 2022 through June 30,2023;

. $3,600.00 for the period July 1, 2023 through June 30,2024.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 1 17
(l ndependent Contractor)

Page 14

.$

.$

.$



AND

ATTACHMENT C

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
CHRIS LANGLEY

FORTHE PROVISION OF FILM COMMISSIONER SERV|CES

TERM:

FROM: JULY 1 2021 TO JUNE 30 2024

SEE ATTAGHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 1 17
(l ndependent Contractor)

Page 10 05t21t2019



Specifications I
Insurance Requirements for Most Contracts

(Not for Professional Services or Construction Contracts)

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance
against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise
from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder and the results
of that work by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees or
subcontractors.

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF'INSURANCE

Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

1. Commercial General Liability (CGL): lnsurance Services Office (lSO) Form
CG 00 01 12 07 covering CGL on an "occurrence" basis, including products-
completed operations, personal & advertising injury, with limits no less than
$1,000,000 per occurrence. lf a general aggregate limit applies, either the
general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this project/location or the
general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.

2. Automobile Liability: ISO Form Number CA 00 01 covering any auto (Code 1),
or if Contractor has no owned autos, hired, (Code 8) and non-owned autos (Code
9), with limit no less than $500,000 per accident for bodily injury and property
damage.

3. Workers' Gompensation: as required by the State of California, with Statutory
Limits, and Employer's Liability lnsurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000
per accident for bodily injury or disease.

If the contractor maintains higher limits than the minimums shown above, the Entity requires and
shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by the contractor.

Other fnsurance Provisions

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following
provisions:

Add iti o na I I n su red Sfafus

The Entity, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as
additional insureds on the CGL policy with respecl to liability arising out of work
or operations performed by or on behalf of the Contractor including materials,
parts, or equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations.
General liability coverage can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the
Contractor's insurance at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 1 1 85 or if not
available, through the addition of both CG 20 10 and CG 20 37 if a later edition is
used).



Primary Coverage

For any claims related to this contract, the Contractor's insurance coverage shall
be primary insurance as respects the Entity, its officers, officials, employees, and
volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the Entity, its officers,
officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor's insurance
and shall not contribute with it.

Notice of Cancellation

Each insurance policy required above shall provide that coverage shall not be
canceled, except with notice to the Entity.

Waiver of Subrogation

Contractor hereby grants to Entity a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer of said
Contractor may acquire against the Entity by virtue of the payment of any loss under such
insurance. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to effect this
waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not the Entity has

received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.

Deductibles and S elf-I nsured Retentions

Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by
the Entity. The Entity may require the Contractor to purchase coverage with a
lower deductible or retention or provide proof of ability to pay losses and related
investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses within the retention.

Acceptabi lity of I nsu rers
lnsurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less
than A:Vll, unless otherwise acceptable to the Entity.

Verification of Coverage

Contractor shall furnish the Entity with original certificates and amendatory
endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage
required by this clause. All certificates and endorsements are to be received and
approved by the Entity before work commences. However, failure to obtain the
required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Contractor's
obligation to provide them. The Entity reserves the right to require complete,
certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements
required by these specifications, at any time.

Special Bisks or Circumslances
Entity reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on
the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special
circumstances.



















































County of Inyo

County Administrator - Economic 
Development

 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  May 25, 2021
 
FROM:  Assistant Clerk of the Board
 
SUBJECT:  Amendment 1 to Contract with The Ferguson Group LLC
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve Amendment No. 1 to the contract between The Ferguson Group, LLC and County of 
Inyo for provision of Federal Advocacy Services, extending the term from July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2022 in an 
amount not to exceed $101,000, contingent upon the Board's approval of the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Budget, and 
authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
On June 26, 2018, your Board approved a three-year contract with The Ferguson Group, LLC for the provision of 
Federal Advocacy Services on behalf of the County. The Ferguson Group was one of nine firms submitting 
proposals to the County in response to a formal Request for Proposals. A review committee comprised of two 
members of the Board, the Inyo County Public Works Director, Inyo County Counsel, and County Administrator 
independently reviewed and then met to rank and score each proposal. The Ferguson Group emerged from the 
process as the highest-ranked respondent.

The current three-year contract, for a total amount not to exceed $303,000 ($101,000 per year), expires June 30. 
Included in the contract is a provision that allows the County, in its sole discretion, to annually elect to continue 
the agreement for another 12 months beyond the original term. At the end of the 36 months, the contract also 
provides the County and The Ferguson Group the option to extend the contract for another five years on terms 
mutually agreed upon. For now, your Board is asked to extend the contract with The Ferguson Group another 12 
months, after which a five-year extension will be considered.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve the contract amendment, modify the contract amendment, or direct the 
issuance of another RFP. None of these alternatives are recommended.



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
The Ferguson Group engages federal agency officials and staff as well as the County's congressional delegation 
to obtain funding for priority projects identified by your Board.
 
FINANCING:
Funding for this contract is included will be included in the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Budget under Advertising 
County Resources.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. TFG Amendment 1
2. 20180626 TFG LLC Federal Advocacy Services
 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 5/11/2021
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 5/11/2021
Amy Shepherd Approved - 5/12/2021
Clint Quilter Final Approval - 5/12/2021



AMENDMENT NUMBER 1

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND
THE FERGUSON GROUP. LLC

FOR THE PROVISION OF FEDERAL ADVOCACY SERVICES

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") and The Ferguson Group,
LLC (hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"), have entered into an Agreement for the Provision of Federal
Advocacy Services dated June 26, 2018, on County of lnyo Standard Contract No. 1 19, for the term from
July 1 , 2018 through June 30,2021.

WHEREAS, County and Contractor do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth
below;

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written
form, and executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement
to maintain continuity.

County and Contractor hereby amend such Agreement as follows:

1. Paragraph 2. TERM. is amended to read as follows:

"The term of this Agreement shall be from July 1 ,2018 to June gO,2O2Z,
unless sooner terminated as provided below."

/// NOTHING FOLLOWS \\

The effective date of this Amendment to the Agreement is July 1,2021.

All the other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and remain the same.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No 1 19
Page 1

04t30t2020



AMENDMENT NUMBER 1

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND
THE FERGUSON GROUP. LLC

FOR THE PROVISION OF FEDERAL ADVOCACY SERVICES

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS
DAY OF

COUNTY OF INYO CONTRACTOR

By: By
Signature

Dated

Type or Print

Dated

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

|--- -/-
County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM

County Auditor

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS:

Personnel Services

APPROVED AS TO RISK ASSESSMENT:

County Risk Manager

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No 1 19
Page 1

04t30t2020



















































































































County of Inyo

County Administrator - Purchasing
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  May 25, 2021
 
FROM:  Denelle Carrington
 
SUBJECT:  Award of Bid No. 2021-07 - Print Bid
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board award Bid No. 2021-07 - Print Bid to The Hanigan Company, Inc. and authorize purchase orders 
to be approved for various County Departments to order printing from this bid for Fiscal Year 2021-2022, Fiscal 
Year 2022-2023, Fiscal Year 2023-2024 with the option to extend the bid for an additional two fiscal years.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The items on this bid consist of letterhead, forms, envelopes, business cards, etc., that the departments anticipate 
needing each fiscal year. Bid Packets were mailed and the bid was advertised. Following is a recap of the bids 
(please note that listed amounts do not include sales tax):

VENDOR BID AMOUNT
The Hanigan Company $17,997.00
ABM Print Shop $38,747,53
Mammoth-June Publishing No Bid Received
Alex Printing No Bid Received

The bid specified that it would be awarded to the Successful Bidder for three years with an option to extend for 
two more years after that. It is recommended that The Hanigan Company be awarded the bid.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to award this bid, however this is not advised, as the Purchasing Department sent 
out the bid through the competitive process and has obtained the best prices available at this time. 
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
All County Departments
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

FINANCING:
County Departments are expected to include the cost for printing needs in their budgets each Fiscal Year.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
 
APPROVALS:
Denelle Carrington Created/Initiated - 5/19/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/19/2021
Denelle Carrington Approved - 5/19/2021
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 5/20/2021
Amy Shepherd Final Approval - 5/20/2021



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Recycling & Waste 
Management

 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  May 25, 2021
 
FROM:  Leslie Chapman
 
SUBJECT:  Approve contract between the County of Inyo and Waste Management of California, Inc for waste 
hauling services
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the contract with Waste Management of California, Inc. for waste hauling services from 
the community of Homewood Canyon, in an amount not to exceed $66,765.02 for the period of July 1, 2021 
through June 30, 2024, subject to the Board's adoption of future County budgets, and authorize the Chairperson 
to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Waste Management of California, Inc was the only bidder for the solid waste hauling and transfer services in 
Homewood Canyon. Waste Management of California, Inc will place a total of seven (7) trash dumpsters, one (1) 
15 cubic yard enclosed commingled recycling roll off container and (1)  30 cubic yard roll off picked up quarterly 
for green waste at the Homewood Canyon Transfer Station and transport the waste to the Ridgecrest Landfill in 
Kern County.

The service contract, if approved would be scheduled for a three-year term.  The annual cost of providing the 
trash services as outlined in the Scope of Work in the attached contract, with a not to exceed amount of 
$66,765.02.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose to not implement this Contract and not place bins in the community of Homewood 
Canyon; however, this would require the residents to transport their waste to the Ridgecrest landfill.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Auditor, County Counsel
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

FINANCING:
These services will be budgeted in the Solid Waste Budget 045700, Object Code 5265, Professional Services.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Waste Management of California, Inc. Contract
 
APPROVALS:
Teresa Elliott Created/Initiated - 4/30/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 4/30/2021
Teresa Elliott Approved - 5/4/2021
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 5/4/2021
Amy Shepherd Approved - 5/4/2021
Leslie Chapman Final Approval - 5/10/2021























County of Inyo

County Administrator - Recycling & Waste 
Management

 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  May 25, 2021
 
FROM:  Leslie Chapman
 
SUBJECT:  Contract Between the County of Inyo and Pahrump Valley Disposal, Inc. for Waste Hauling Services 
from the communities of Tecopa, Shoshone, Charleston View, Furnace Creek, and Death Valley Junction to 
Pahrump, Nevada Waste Disposal Facility.
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the contract between the County of Inyo and Pahrump Valley Disposal of Pahrump, NV 
as a sole-source provider of waste hauling services from the communities of Tecopa, Shoshone, Charleston 
View, Furnace Creek, and Death Valley Junction to Pahrump, Nevada Waste Disposal Facility, in an amount not 
to exceed $1,175,078.09 for the period of July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2026, contingent upon the Board’s 
approval of future budgets, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures 
being obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Pahrump Valley Disposal, Inc. is the only provider of solid waste hauling and transfer services in Tecopa, Death 
Valley Junction, Shoshone, Charleston View, and Furnace Creek and is the only waste hauler that currently 
holds the required permit to operate the service. Pahrump Valley Disposal, Inc. will place a total of thirty six (36) 
trash dumpsters, and four (4) recycling containers in the multiple communities and transport the waste to the 
Pahrump, Nevada landfill.

The service Contract, if approved would be scheduled for a five-year term. The annual cost of providing the trash 
services in all identified areas, as outlined in the Scope of Work in the attached Contract, will be $221,331.33 for 
Fiscal Year 2021/2022, $227,971.27 for Fiscal Year 2022/2023, $234,810.41 for Fiscal Year 2023/2024, 
$241,854.72 for Fiscal Year 2024/2025 and $249,110.36 for Fiscal Year 2025/2026.   The five (5) year not-to-
exceed amount is $1,175,078,.09.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose to not implement this Contract and not place bins in the communities of Tecopa, 
Shoshone, Charleston View, Furnace Creek, and Death Valley Junction; however, this would require the 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

residents to transport their waste to the Pahrump landfill.  
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
 
FINANCING:
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Pahrump Valley Disposal Contract
 
APPROVALS:
Teresa Elliott Created/Initiated - 4/30/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/4/2021
Teresa Elliott Approved - 5/11/2021
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 5/11/2021
Amy Shepherd Approved - 5/11/2021
Leslie Chapman Final Approval - 5/11/2021































County of Inyo

Health & Human Services - Behavioral Health
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  May 25, 2021
 
FROM:  Lucy Vincent
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of the contract between County of Inyo and Dr. Anne Goshgarian to serve as the 
Substance Use Disorder Medical Director
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the contract between the County of Inyo and Dr. Anne Goshgarian of Bishop, CA to 
serve as the Health and Human Services Substance Use Disorder Medical Director in an amount not to exceed 
$21,000 for the period of July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022, contingent upon the Board’s approval of the Fiscal 
Year 2021-2022 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being 
obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Beginning in November 2019, Inyo County allocated grant funding to contract with Dr. Anne Goshgarian to serve 
as the Inyo County Health and Human Services Substance Use Disorder (SUD) program Medical Director. Dr. 
Goshgarian has been heavily involved in the Northern Inyo Healthcare District (NIHD) Rural Health Clinic 
Medication Assisted Treatment (MAT) program for opioid use disorder. Our SUD program has benefitted greatly 
from Dr. Goshgarian’s expertise and guidance.  This contracted position has not only led to greater coordination 
between Inyo County's SUD program and the NIHD MAT program; it has also ensured SUD program compliance 
with State physician oversight requirements. We respectfully request permission to renew this contract.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could deny approval of this contract. This would result in a need to identify an alternative physician to 
function as the medical director for SUD.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Northern Inyo Hospital and other agencies involved in the provision of services to persons with substance use
disorders.
 
FINANCING:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

State grant funds. This contract will be paid out of the Health Budget (045100), object code Professional Services 
(5265) with MAT grant funds. No County General Funds.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Dr. Goshgarian SUD Medical Director Contract FY21-22
2. Qualified Service Organization/Business Associate Agreement 
 
APPROVALS:
Lucy Vincent Created/Initiated - 5/5/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/5/2021
Lucy Vincent Approved - 5/6/2021
Marilyn Mann Approved - 5/6/2021
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 5/13/2021
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 5/13/2021
Amy Shepherd Approved - 5/13/2021
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 5/13/2021



 

 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 111  
 (Independent Contractor) 
      Page 1 of 9      

                                                                   05/17/2019 
 

 AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 
AND _______________________________________________________ 

FOR THE PROVISION OF ___________________________________________________ SERVICES 
 

 INTRODUCTION 
 
 WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") may have the need for the  
_____________________________________ services of ___________________________________of 
____________________________ (hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"), and in consideration of the 
mutual  promises, covenants, terms, and conditions hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as 
follows: 
 
 TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
1. SCOPE OF WORK. 
 
 The Contractor shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in 
Attachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein.  Requests by the County to the 
Contractor to perform under this Agreement will be made by _________________________________ 
whose title is:___________________________________. Requests to the Contractor for work or services to 
be performed under this Agreement will be based upon the County's need for such services.  The County 
makes no guarantee or warranty, of any nature, that any minimum level or amount of services or work will be 
requested of the Contractor by the County under this Agreement.  County by this Agreement incurs no 
obligation or requirement to request from Contractor the performance of any services or work at all, even if 
County should have some need for such services or work during the term of this Agreement. 
 
 Services and work provided by the Contractor at the County's request under this Agreement will be 
performed in a  manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal, 
state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions.  Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and 
resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreement. 
 
2. TERM. 
 
 The term of this Agreement shall be from ____________________ to ____________________, 
unless sooner terminated as provided below. 
 
3. CONSIDERATION. 
 
 A. Compensation. County shall pay to Contractor the sum of  __________________________ 
Dollars and  _________________________ cents ($_____________________________) per hour 
(hereinafter referred to as "hourly rate") for the services and work described in Attachment A which are 
performed by Contractor at the County's request.  Hours worked under the provisions of this Agreement in 
excess of forty (40) hours per week will be paid at the hourly rate. 
 B. Travel and per diem.  Contractor will not be paid or reimbursed for travel expenses or per 
diem which Contractor incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreement.  
  C. No additional consideration.  Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Contractor 
shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, 
wages, or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement.  Specifically, Contractor 
shall not be entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance 
benefits, retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other 
paid leaves of absence of any type or kind whatsoever. 
 D. Limit upon amount payable under Agreement. The total sum of all payments made by the 
County to Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement shall not exceed 



 

 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 111  
 (Independent Contractor) 
      Page 2 of 9      

                                                                   05/17/2019 
 

_______________________________________________________________Dollars and ______________ 
cents ($____________________________________) (hereinafter referred to as "contract limit").  County 
expressly reserves the right to deny any payment or reimbursement requested by Contractor for services or 
work performed which is in excess of the contract limit. 
 E. Billing and payment.  Contractor shall submit to the County, once a month, an itemized 
statement of all hours spent by Contractor in performing services and work described in Attachment A, which 
were done at the County's request.  This statement will be submitted to the County not later than the fifth 
(5th) day of the month.  The statement to be submitted will cover the period from the first (1st) day of the 
preceding month through and including the last day of the preceding month.  This statement will identify the 
date on which the hours were worked and describe the nature of the work which was performed on each day. 
Upon timely receipt of the statement by the fifth (5th) day of the month, County shall make payment to 
Contractor on the last day of the month. 
 F. Federal and State taxes.  
  
  (1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any federal 

or state income  taxes or social security from any payments made by County to Contractor under the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

  (2) County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made under this 
Agreement to non-California resident independent contractors when it is anticipated that total annual 
payments to Contractor under this Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety nine 
dollars ($1,499.00). 

  (3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or 
payments from sums paid  by County to Contractor under this Agreement.  Payment of all taxes and 
other assessments on such sums is the sole responsibility of Contractor.  County has no 
responsibility or liability for payment of Contractor's taxes or assessments. 

  (4) The total amounts paid by County to Contractor, and taxes withheld from payments 
to non-California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the Internal Revenue Service and the 
California State Franchise Tax Board.  To facilitate this reporting, Contractor shall complete and 
submit to the County an Internal Revenue Service (IRS) Form W-9 upon executing this 
Agreement. 

 
4. WORK SCHEDULE. 
 
 Contractor's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in 
Attachment A which are requested by the County.  It is understood by Contractor that the performance of 
these services and work will require a varied schedule.  Contractor will arrange his/her own schedule, but will 
coordinate with County to ensure that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will 
be performed within the time frame set forth by County. 
 
5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS. 
 
 A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, or municipal 
governments for contractor to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured by 
contractor and be valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement or as otherwise may be required.  
Further, during the term of this Agreement, Contractor must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits 
in full force and effect.  Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's 
licenses, professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses.  Such licenses, certificates, and permits 
will be procured and maintained in force by Contractor at no expense to the County.  Contractor will provide 
County, upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and 
permits which are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A.  Where there is a dispute 
between Contractor and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the  
services identified in Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of 
this Agreement. 



 

 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 111  
 (Independent Contractor) 
      Page 3 of 9      

                                                                   05/17/2019 
 

 B. Contractor warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, 
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any federal 
department or agency.  Contractor also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from receiving 
federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-procurement 
Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: http://www.sam.gov.  
 
6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC. 
 
 Contractor shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and 
telephone service as is necessary for Contractor to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this 
Agreement.  County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor, for any expense or cost incurred by 
Contractor in procuring or maintaining such items.  Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by 
Contractor in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of Contractor. 
 
7. COUNTY PROPERTY. 
 
 A. Personal Property of County.  Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective or 
safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this 
Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County.  
Contractor will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in 
Contractor's possession.  Contractor will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items, 
partial or total, which is the result of Contractor's negligence. 
 B. Products of Contractor's Work and Services. Any and all compositions, publications, plans, 
designs, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer 
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual 
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or 
intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result, 
product, or manifestation of, Contractor's services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination 
of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property  of the County.  At the termination of the 
Agreement, Contractor will convey possession and title to all such properties to County. 
 
8. INSURANCE. 

 
For the duration of this Agreement Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope 

and amount specified in Attachment B and with the provisions specified in that attachment. 
 
9. STATUS OF CONTRACTOR. 
 
 All acts of Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this 
Agreement, shall be performed as independent contractors, and not as agents, officers, or employees of 
County.  Contractor, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of 
County.  Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Contractor has no authority or responsibility to 
exercise any rights or power vested in the County.  No agent, officer, or employee of the County is to be 
considered an employee of Contractor. It is understood by both Contractor and County that this Agreement 
shall not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship 
or a joint venture.  As an independent contractor: 
 
 A. Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and 
services to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement. 
 B. Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in 
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's 
control with respect to the physical action or activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement. 



 

 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 111  
 (Independent Contractor) 
      Page 4 of 9      

                                                                   05/17/2019 
 

 C. Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this 
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent contractors, and not as employees of 
County. 
 
10. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION. 
 
 Contractor shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify County and its officers, officials, employees 
and volunteers from and against any and all liability, loss, damage, expense, costs (including without 
limitation costs and fees of litigation) of every nature arising out of or in connection with Contractor
performance of work hereunder or its failure to comply with any of its obligations contained in the 
agreement, except such loss or damages which was caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct 
of the County. 
 
11. RECORDS AND AUDIT. 
 
 A. Records. Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various 
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, and municipal law, ordinances, regulations, and directions.  
Contractor shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion of 
this Agreement.  Contractor may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by 
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records. 
 B. Inspections and Audits. Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any 
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Contractor, which 
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation, 
examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Contractor.  
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or otherwise evaluate the work 
performed or being performed under this Agreement. 
 
12. NONDISCRIMINATION. 
 
 During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees shall not 
unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for 
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national 
origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex.  Contractor and its agents, 
officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act 
(Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the 
California Code of Regulations.  Contractor shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-
352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act. 
 
13. CANCELLATION. 
 
 This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to 
Contractor thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to cancel.  Contractor may cancel this Agreement 
without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to 
cancel to County. 
 
14. ASSIGNMENT. 
  
 This is an agreement for the services of Contractor.  County has relied upon the skills, knowledge, 
experience, and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement.  Contractor shall not 
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.  
Further, Contractor shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior 
written consent of County. 
 
 



 

 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 111  
 (Independent Contractor) 
      Page 5 of 9      

                                                                   05/17/2019 
 

15. DEFAULT. 
 
 If the Contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by 
County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by  
County, County may declare the Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days written 
notice to Contractor.  Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Contractor all amounts owing to 
Contractor for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.   
 
16. WAIVER OF DEFAULT. 
 
 Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any 
subsequent default.  Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver 
of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this 
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-two (22) below. 
 
17. CONFIDENTIALITY. 
 
 Contractor further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws, 
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by 
Contractor in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted, 
or confidential.  Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such information and records.  Disclosure of such 
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only with the express written 
consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Contractor witho
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Contractor in all respects.  
 
 Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social 
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45, 
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, 
and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant 
thereto.  For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to 
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.  
 
18. CONFLICTS. 
 
 Contractor agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which 
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement. 
 
19.   POST AGREEMENT COVENANT. 
 
 Contractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained 
from the County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit, 
gain, or enhancement.  Further, Contractor agrees for a period of two years after the termination of this 
Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any entity, association, corporation, or person who, 
during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has  
been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Contractor by virtue of this 
Agreement has gained access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information. 
 
20. SEVERABILITY. 
 
 If any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be 
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or 
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application  
 
 



 

 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 111  
 (Independent Contractor) 
      Page 6 of 9      

                                                                   05/17/2019 
 

thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the 
provisions of this Agreement are severable. 
 
21. FUNDING LIMITATION. 
 
 The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.  
In the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the 
option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying 
Contractor of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding.  Any reduction or modification 
of this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-
two (22) (Amendment). 
 
22. AMENDMENT. 
 
 This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual 
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same 
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity. 
 
23. NOTICE. 
 
 Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including 
change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Contractor or County shall be 
required, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first 
class mail to, the respective parties as follows: 
 
   County of Inyo 
                                                         Department 
                                                         Address 
                                                         City and State 
 
   Contractor: 
                                                         Department 
                                                         Address 
                                                         City and State 
 
 
24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. 
 
 This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements, 
promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by 
reference, shall be of any force or effect.  Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived, 
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto. 

 
#     #



 

 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 111  
 (Independent Contractor) 
      Page 7 of 9      

                                                                   05/17/2019 
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 
AND _______________________________________________________ 

FOR THE PROVISION OF ___________________________________________________ SERVICES 
 

 
 IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS  
             DAY OF                                                    , ______________. 
 
 
COUNTY OF INYO     CONTRACTOR 
 
 
By:                                                      By:       
               Signature  
Dated:                                                
               
        Type or Print Name 
        
        Dated:                
       
        
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:   
          
                                                                                
County Counsel  
 
 
APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM: 
 
       
County Auditor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS: 
   
        
Personnel Services 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS: 
   
       
County Risk Manager 

Anne Goshgarian
Anne Goshgarian, M.D., Inc.

Anne Goshgarian_1
5/05/2021



 

 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 111  
 (Independent Contractor) 
      Page 8 of 9      

                                                                   05/17/2019 
 

 
 ATTACHMENT A 
 
 AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

AND _______________________________________________________ 
FOR THE PROVISION OF ___________________________________________________ SERVICES 

 
 TERM: 
 
 FROM:______________________________ TO:______________________________ 
  
 SCOPE OF WORK: 
 
 



 

 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 111  
 (Independent Contractor) 
      Page 9 of 9      

                                                                   05/17/2019 
 

 ATTACHMENT  B 
 

 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

AND _______________________________________________________ 
FOR THE PROVISION OF ___________________________________________________ SERVICES 

 
 

FROM:______________________________ TO:______________________________ 
 
 

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS  

The County Medical Malpractice Memorandum of Coverage provides coverage for Medical Professional  
Services and Limited General Liability in amounts of at least $1,500,000 per occurrence.  For the term of this 
Agreement, Contractor will be covered under the County’s Medical Malpractice coverage for the services 
rendered on behalf of the County and/or at County facilities.  
 
 



 1

 
COUNTY OF INYO  

QUALIFIED SERVICE ORGANIZATION/BUSINESS ASSOCIATE 
AGREEMENT (QSO/BA AGREEMENT)  

FOR SUBSTANCE USE DISORDER SERVICES 
 
This Qualified Service Organization/Business Associate Agreement (“Agreement”) is made by and 
between the Inyo County Health and Human Services Behavioral Health Division, referred to herein as 
“HHS-BH,” and Dr. Anne Goshgarian, an independent contractor, herein referred to as “Physician” 

This Agreement is effective as of July 1, 2021 (the “Agreement Effective Date.”) 

HHS-BH and the Physician hereby enter into an agreement whereby the Physician agrees to provide the 
services described in Exhibit A: Scope of Services.  Furthermore, the Treatment Center: 
 

1. acknowledges that in receiving, transmitting, transporting, storing, processing, or otherwise 
dealing with any information received from HHS-BH identifying or otherwise relating to the 
patients of the Physician (“protected information”), it is fully bound by the provisions of the 
federal regulations governing the Confidentiality of Alcohol and Drug Abuse Patient Records, 42 
C.F.R. Part 2; and the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA), 45 C.F.R. 
Parts 142, 160, 162 and 164; 
 

2. agrees to resist any efforts in judicial proceedings to obtain access to the protected information 
except as expressly provided for in the regulations governing the Confidentiality of Alcohol and 
Drug Abuse Patient Records, 42 C.F.R. Part 2; 
 

3. agrees that it will not use or disclose protected health information except as permitted or required 
by this Agreement or by law;  
 

4. agrees that, when the Physician uses, discloses, or requests protected health information, it will 
limit the use, disclosure, or request to the minimum necessary; 
 

5. agrees that if the Physician enters into a contract with any agent, including a subcontractor, the 
agent will agree to comply with 42 C.F.R. Part 2 and HIPAA, and, if the Physician learns of a 
pattern or practice by the agent that is a material breach of the contract with the Physician, to take 
reasonable steps to cure the breach or terminate the contract, if feasible; 
 

6. agrees to comply with HIPAA’s security provisions with regard to electronic protected health 
information, and to use appropriate safeguards to prevent the unauthorized use or disclosure of 
the protected information; 
 

7. agrees to report breaches of protected information to HHS-BH; 
 

8. agrees to report to HHS-BH in writing of any use or disclosure of the protected information not 
provided for in this Agreement of which it becomes aware without unreasonable delay and in no 
case later than ten (10) calendar days after discovery [42 USC Section 17921; 45 CFR Section 
164.504(e)(2)(ii)(C); 45 CFR Section 164.308(b)]. 
 

9. agrees to ensure that any agent, including a subcontractor, to whom the Physician provides 
protected information received from the HHS-BH, or creates or receives on behalf of HHS-BH,  



 2

agrees to the same restrictions and conditions that apply through this Agreement to the Physician 
with respect to such information; 

 
10. agrees to provide access to the protected information at the request of HHS-BH, or to an 

individual as directed by HHS-BH, in order to meet the requirements of 45 C.F.R. §164.524 
which provides patients with the right to access and copy their own protected information.  
Protected information shall be made available to HHS-BH for inspection and copying within ten 
(10) days of a request by HHS-BH to enable HHS-BH to fulfill its obligations under the Privacy 
Rule, or for amendment to protected information as directed or agreed to by HHS-BH pursuant to 
45 C.F.R. §164.526; 
 

11. agrees to make available its internal practices, books, and records, including policies and 
procedures, relating to the use and disclosure of protected information received from the HHS-
BH, or created or received by the Physician on behalf of HHS-BH, to HHS-BH or to the 
Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services for purposes of the Secretary 
determining the Program’s compliance with HIPAA within ten (10) days of request;  
 

12. agrees to document disclosures of protected information, and information related to such 
disclosures, as would be required for HHS-BH to respond to a request by an individual for an 
accounting of disclosures in accordance with 45 C.F.R. § 164.528; 
 

13. agrees to provide HHS-BH or an individual information in accordance with paragraph (9) of this 
agreement to permit HHS-BH to respond to a request by an individual for an accounting of 
disclosures in accordance with 45 C.F.R. § 164.528.  

 
Termination 

1. HHS-BH may terminate this Agreement if it determines that the Physician has violated any 
material term.  
 

2. Upon termination of this Agreement for any reason, the Physician shall return or destroy all 
protected information received from HHS-BH, or created or received by the Physician on behalf 
of HHS-BH. This provision shall apply to protected information that is in the possession of 
subcontractors or agents of the Physician. The Physician shall retain no copies of the protected 
information. 
 

3. In the event that the Physician determines that returning or destroying the protected information is 
infeasible, the Physician shall notify HHS-BH of the conditions that make return or destruction 
infeasible. 
 

4. Upon notification that the return or destruction of the protected information is infeasible, the 
Physician shall extend the protections of this Agreement to such protected information and limit 
further uses and disclosures of the information to those purposes that make the return or 
destruction infeasible, as long as the Physician maintains the information. 
 
 

Executed this ____ day of _________, 20___._________________________ _____________________  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Anne Goshgarian_2
5th

Anne Goshgarian_3
May

Anne Goshgarian_4
21



 3

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Agreement as of the Agreement 
Effective Date. 
 
County of Inyo Health and Human Services  Physician 
Behavioral Health                            

 
By: __________________________________               By:____________________________________ 

 
Print Name: ____________________________  Print Name: _____________________________ 
 
Title: _________________________________  Title: __________________________________ 
 
Date: _________________________________  Date: __________________________________ 

Gail Zwier, Ph.D.

HHS Deputy Director of Behavioral Health

5-6-21

Anne Goshgarian_5
Anne Goshgarian, M.D., Inc

Anne Goshgarian_6
5/5/21

Anne Goshgarian_7
Physician



County of Inyo

Public Works
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  May 25, 2021
 
FROM:  Sally Faircloth
 
SUBJECT:  Request authorization to purchase Asphaltic Emulsion
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) declare VSS Emultech of Bakersfield, CA the successful bidder for Asphaltic Emulsion per Bid 
RD21-04: and B) authorize the purchase of thirty-two (32) 280-gallon capacity totes of SS-1H Asphaltic Emulsion 
from VSS Emultech of Bakersfield, CA in an amount not to exceed $54,081.70.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Road Department solicited bids from suppliers for Asphaltic Emulsion in April 2021, for road paving and 
maintenance needs.  Bids were opened on May 17th, 2021 and two bids were received:

VSS Emultech of Bakersfield, CA                         $54,081.70
Pavement Preservation Specialties                      $101,63.10

The Road Department has reviewed the bid for responsiveness is recommending your Board authorize the 
purchase of thirty-two (32) 280 gallon capacity totes of SS-1H Asphaltic Emulsion from VSS Emultech to be 
picked up at the material plant in Bakersfield.  The total expense including tax is not to exceed $54,081.70.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could choose not to approve this purchase.  This is not recommended as this product is needed for 
any asphalt work that the Road Department undertakes and having the option for will-call filling of totes will 
ensure that material needs are met when needed.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
County Counsel
Auditor
 
FINANCING:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

The costs for Asphaltic Emulsion will be paid out of the Road Department Budget 034600, Object Code 5309 - 
Road Materials.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. RD21-04 Bid Tab
2. VSS Emultech Bid
 
APPROVALS:
Sally Faircloth Created/Initiated - 5/19/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/19/2021
Sally Faircloth Approved - 5/19/2021
Trevor Taylor Approved - 5/19/2021
Michael Errante Approved - 5/19/2021
Breanne Nelums Approved - 5/19/2021
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 5/19/2021
Amy Shepherd Approved - 5/19/2021
Michael Errante Final Approval - 5/19/2021















County of Inyo

Public Works
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  May 25, 2021
 
FROM:  Sally Faircloth
 
SUBJECT:  Request authorization to purchase Crack Seal Material and enter into 6-month rental agreement for 
a crack sealing kettle
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) declare Seal Master of Bakersfield, CA the successful bidder for Crack Seal Material and 
enter into six-month rental agreement for crack sealing kettle from Seal Master of Bakersfield, CA per Bid No. 
RD21-06; and B) authorize the purchase of 60,000 pounds of Crack Seal Material and a six-month kettle rental 
from Seal Master of Bakersfield, CA in an amount not to exceed $60,124.50.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Road Department solicited bids for crack sealing material and a rental melting kettle for road maintenance 
and repair.  Bids were opened on May 17, 2021 and two bids were received:

Seal Master of Bakersfield, CA           $60,124.50
Pavement Preservation Specialties    $96,249.50

The Road Department has reviewed the bid for responsiveness.  The Road Department recommends your Board 
authorize the purchase of Sixty Thousand pounds (60,000 lbs) of Crack Seal Material from Seal Master of 
Bakersfield.  The Road Department has a material melting kettle in its fleet: however, due to the age of the kettle, 
its operation is unreliable.  A rental will provide a greater degree of certainty that equipment malfunction will not 
delay or prevent the proposed crack sealing from occurring.  The total expense, including delivery and taxes, is 
not to exceed $60,124.50.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could choose not to approve this purchase.  This is not recommended, as the materials are needed to 
perform necessary road maintenance projects. If the  purchase is not approved, the Road Department would need to 
re-advertise the Bid Package which would delay maintenance work and could result in less favorable bids.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

County Counsel
Auditor
 
FINANCING:
The funding for these asphalt materials to be used in routine maintenance will be paid from the Road Department 
Budget 034600, Object Code 5309 Road Material.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Bid Tab RD 21-06
2. Bid Package
 
APPROVALS:
Sally Faircloth Created/Initiated - 5/12/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/12/2021
Sally Faircloth Approved - 5/19/2021
Trevor Taylor Approved - 5/19/2021
Sally Faircloth Approved - 5/19/2021
Michael Errante Approved - 5/19/2021
Breanne Nelums Approved - 5/19/2021
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 5/19/2021
Amy Shepherd Approved - 5/19/2021
Michael Errante Final Approval - 5/19/2021



























































County of Inyo

Public Works
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  May 25, 2021
 
FROM:  Sally Faircloth
 
SUBJECT:  Request authorization to purchase 300 Tons of Plant Mixed Asphalt
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) declare Bowman Asphalt of Bakersfield, CA the successful bidder for 300 Tons of Plant Mixed 
Asphalt per Bid No. RD21-05; and B) authorize the purchase of Three Hundred (300) Tons of Plant Mixed 
Asphalt from Bowman Asphalt of Bakersfield, CA in an amount not to exceed $50,971.50.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Road Department solicited bids from suppliers of Plant Mixed Asphalt in April 2021 to stockpile needed 
material for 2021 season.  The stockpiled material will be used for maintenance work on Inyo County roads.  Bids 
were opened on May 17th, 2021 and  two bids were received:

Bowman Asphalt of Bakersfield, CA                  $50,971.50
Granite Construction Company                         $61,406.25

The Road Department has reviewed the bids for responsiveness.  The Road Department is recommending your 
Board authorize the purchase of Three Hundred (300) Tons of Cold Mix Asphalt from Bowman Asphalt of 
Bakersfield, CA.  The total expense, including applicable taxes is not to exceed $50,971.50 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve this purchase.  This is not recommended, as the materials are needed 
to perform necessary road maintenance projects.  If the purchase is not approved, the Road Department would 
need to re-advertise the Bid Package which would delay maintenance work and could result in less favorable 
bids.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
County Counsel
Auditor
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

FINANCING:
The funding for these asphalt materials to be used in road maintenance will be paid from the Road Department 
Budget 034600, Object Code 5309 Road Material.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. RD21-05 Bid Tab
2. Bowman Asphalt Bid
 
APPROVALS:
Sally Faircloth Created/Initiated - 5/12/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/12/2021
Sally Faircloth Approved - 5/19/2021
Michael Errante Approved - 5/19/2021
Breanne Nelums Approved - 5/19/2021
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 5/19/2021
Amy Shepherd Approved - 5/19/2021
Michael Errante Final Approval - 5/19/2021













ANNUAL REPORT
INYO COUNTY FILM COMMISSION
JULY 2O2O TO JUNE 2021

AN UPSIDE DOWN, SIDEWAYS
YEAR FOR FILMING

A lOO MEMBER N'SSEN COMMERCIAL CONCERNED KEELER RESIDENTS

Christopher Langley
lnyo County Film Commission

Box 99
Lone Pine, California 93545

t



GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE 2020-2021 YEAR IN FILMING

We all have been through quite a bit in this last fiscal year. Nothing is quite
the same, or even close to the same, but we have struggled through it and
tried to make the best of it. That includes those involved in the film industry,
across the nation, in California, and here in Inyo County.

The 2020-2021 year beginning July first saw virtually no film projects, and
almost no inquiries the first three months. The future looked bleak even as
people adjusted to masks, social distancing, and made it a political issue
rather than a health issue.

Then at the end of September all that began to change, and production
companies began to realize
filming was a low risk industry
and with care and patience
perhaps could be managed.
Just as our first commercials
began to come on location,
our County Health
Department, the California
government, and Los Angeles
film production companies
began to realize there was a
way forward. A new job
description, Covid

Containment Officer, was created and people
were trained. Protocols were development to
satisfy the science of the pandemic and we had
a Toyota car commercial coming to Lone Pine,
the Alabamas, and Whitney Portal.

Luckily the Location Manager was a friend of
, mine with whom I had worked several times

from my beginning as film commissioner. He
kept me closely involved and explained how
they were proceeding. He also met me when the
crew and talent and cars came on location.

2



Through the four days stay he told how things had changed, how it took
several days for people to work smoothly together. But his point was this:
"lt's workable." lasked to be treated like one of the crew showing up and I

went through the protocol: a survey and temperature check. The
assumption was I had already been tested and was negative before
travelling here. That threw open the door and several projects large and
small came filming safely.

COVID PANDEMIC AND VACCINES

The pandemic as it developed changed a lot of things. Protocols were
developed (see above) and sometimes after testing and finding several
positives, the project managers simply threw in the towel and left. One
project after several weeks of scouting and pre-production, at Anchor ranch
experienced the "talent" (actors and or models) all test positive upon arrival.
When the producers sent for a new group, they also tested positive. Out
came the towel and a rather large crew departed for home. As the vaccines
became available, as with the general national population, many decided to
get vaccinated and many didn't. Enforcement of masks, social distancing,
hand washing became more and more important with four or more security
people on site to make sure everyone was respecting the behavioral limits.

At the Nissen commercial referenced in the cover photos, the crew was
staying at the Quality Motel. They asked me to find a local "team" member
to check everyone in for testing, and make sure everyone was tested.
Michelle Green of the Lone Star Bistro volunteered, and she said it was an
organized but challenging process. (She did get paid by the production
company.)

FIHES, SMOKE, BRIMSTONE

Remember the fire season last year in
California? lt was the worst ever and
the smoke created visual problems for
several companies. However, they
mostly said it was better here in lnyo
than most other locations.

3



IMPACT OF INCREASED VISITATIONS ON FILMING LOCATIONS

The Alabama Hills is probably the most used and favored location here. By
January visitations in that scenic and preferred location had quadrupled
from years past. That interfered with location filming, as the public has first
choice even when the production company has gone to the trouble and
gotten permits.

As the days and weeks wore on, toilet paper, run-over brush, (remember
"Don't Crush the Brush" pins, stickers, and postings?) and roads being
widened and the edges vandalized, grew worse. The BLM brought in Porta
potties, six of them, that with their green color, stuck out like sore thumbs.
But Ranger Dave Kirk said it was making a noted difference in all the
human waste being left behind. lt was obvious that a certain number of
campers had never experienced camping before. ("Well, Mildred, I wonder
how you set up this tent thing. Which end goes up?")

While the management plan was nearly finished, an RV group registered a
challenge to some things in the plan. lt was their right. Luckily, the judge
did not put a stay on implementations, and the BLM continued to struggle
with how to choose the fifty or less campsites, down from 120 plus, and
how to indicate where each was located.

After working more than ten years with the Stewardship Group getting the
National Scenic Area designation, I have never seen the hills look worse. I

feel a deep personal disappointment.

However, films and commercials were able to complete their projects even
with all this difficulty.

FEDERAL COURT RULING: NO PERMITS, NO FEES

Filming continued at a healthy rate until through the beginning of the new
year when a Federal A.D,C. judge in Virginia "found it an unconstitutional
content-based restriction in free speech to make filmmakers pay to shoot in
national parks just because their work is commercials" (Ashley Cullins,
THR, ESQ January 25,2021.) The story continues "lndie director Gordon

4



Price in December 2019 sued the U.S. Attorney General (William Barr)
along with officials from the Department of the lnterior and National Park
Service challenging the constitutionality of the rule. ln late 2018, two NPS
officers issued Price a citation for filming without a permit in public areas of
the Yorktown Battlefield....He argued that what happened to him amounted
to 'content-based prior restraints'on free speech. The statute at issue didn't
require a permit for non-commercial filmmaking, and there was a specific
exemption for news-gathering. "

This applied to all public lands managed by the Department of the lnterior
and NPS lands. The BLM was advised by their council to immediately stop
issuing permits and charging fees until the decision was analyzed. A
location manager informed me and later that day BLM employee Eli Lane
called, followed by Steve Nelson. Confusion reigned for three weeks, until
such time that permits could be issued based on impact on the resource,
rather than the old issue of commercial use.

CHANGING BLM PERSONNEL

Soon after, Eli Lane left the BLM here when his wife was reassigned, and
an interim employee was assigned filming permits. When I consulted with
him, he said he wanted all communications requesting permits being in
writing and that if the group is less than fifteen and the agent did not see
them as any risk to the resource, they could film without a permit. While this
might sound like a significant loss of revenue for the BLM, it probably isn't
since the permitting fees never did fully cover BLM expenses. Unfortunately
for the hills, after a tough year Dave Kirk is taking six months off that are
well earned. The BLM says it will have personnel checking in on the
welfare of the rocks during that time.

SMALL FILMS, LARGE
COMMENCIALS

One of the interesting quirks of this
year is that we have had six short
films, all westerns in the hills. We
will be showing several of these at\..

t{

5



the 2021 Lone Pine Film Festival that has the
theme of "The Great Western Comeback."

HERE A DRONE, THERE A DRONE,
EVERYWHERE A DRONE.DRONE

Another thing that has
changed is almost every
production except the
short films arrive with one
or more drones. A British
production about Bodie
and the Alabamas was
sending a small cadre of

filmmakers to come here to film. I

warned them I thought at that point they
might have trouble getting the crew
through customs because of the
pandemic. Soon the group was only five
then two and then instead of British they
were going to be local drone operators.
That dropped to one and they asked me
to help him get a spectacular sunset,
rocky landscapes, and a beauty shot.
We managed all, but the operator was
surprisingly casual, sitting a lot of the

limited time. I was disappointed by his attitude, but I bet the results were
spectacular even so.

*fiVASlo.N" CAUSES CONFUSION, BUT STAR GETS NOTICE

The Amazon film with the working title of "lnvasion" got off to a bumpy start
but managed several days of filming right in the middle of town. The star
who was quiet and very serious about his work turned out to be a budding
star. His name is Riz Ahmed, and he had a nomination for best actor in the
Golden Globes and one for best actor in the Oscars. lt was not for our
movie but he was very present at both award ceremonies Although he

. li' _j
f

6

i



didn't win he is clearly on his way to star power. Makes me really looking
forward to his performance in our film when it premiers on Amazon.

4 MILLION SUBSCRIBERS ON YOU TUBE IS BIG BUS'NESS'

r:;xw 4 million subscribers sound like
a lot, but YouTube pays cash
to the producers of the content
for every 2000 people who tune
in, or so I am told. So, when
friend Brent Underwood, owner
of the Cerro Gordo Camp,
asked if I would meet two guys
with a lot of subscribers, and
show them around, I was
curious. He said their names
are Sam and Colby. Their full

names are Samuel Golbach,21, and Cole Brock, 20

We met at the Mt. Whitney Restaurant and boy were they fun and lively,
and amazing at self-promotion. lt was one of those serendipitous events
that I fully enjoyed this year. They were now very interested in local ghost
stories of which there are many up at Cerro Gordo. For instance, Alphonse
used to "live" at the American Hotel, now burned to the ground. Many
people have reported seeing him according to Robert Demarais, caretaker.
The boys brought two assistants, and we had great fun wondering about
the famous ghost and where he "lived" now that the hotel was reduced to
ash.

We toured town, the reservation, and other points of interest. Then we
ended up at the museum where Sam and Colby did an interview with
Robert who was now staying in Gardnerville, or was it Minden? They did
the interview over an iPhone and recorded it to be part of one of their
podcasts. The youth of America are a lot of things, but indefatigable is
certainly one of them.

7



ALERTING THE PUBLIC THERE IS FILMING A FOOT

ln Keeler, on Main Street and for some businesses, people have been
disturbed when a film company without or with little warning show up. I

have taken the pledge to let people know when I know they are coming.
Museum Director Shawn Lum walked the sidewalks getting to know
business owners while passing out a note that something was scheduled to
film on Main. I will try to make that a standard procedure to help film
companies film undisturbed.

FILM HISTORY WRITERS WILL BRING EXTRA ATTENTION TO OUR
LOCATIONS.

During the year I had the pleasure of working with several writers who were
engaged in creating books about specific films made here. Jans Wager,
author of several books about women in film noir, is working on a book

about "The Hitch-hiker,"
considered a classic noir,
directed by lda Lupino. She
was one of the very few
female directors working in
the 1950s. lf you include her
work in television and her
seven feature films, she is
undoubtedly the most prolific
female director ever.

I also got to spend a full day
with producer David Kappes

who is doing a book for University of New Mexico Press on Randolph Scott
who made four movies here in the Alabamas, with a special focus on "Ride
Lonesome." I had to study up and find the locations for all four and be able
to find them. Besides being fascinated by these specialists, one a professor
another a producer of documentaries like "Anne Frank," I learned the
locations and very informative facts about the filming. I believe Jans will be
back at the film festival accompanying me in my special tour of "The Hitch-
hiker."

8



SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION

Those are
some of the
high points, low
points, and new
normal aspects
of the 2020-
2021 filming
during the fiscal
year. Still to

come before July are an electric truck
commercial, a clothing line for the Fall
catalog, and a still shoot of a new car. Time will tell if they all will make it

When all said and done, with lots of interruptions, slowdowns and some
positive Covid tests, I estimate there were at least thirty projects of various
sizes and duration here. Not bad for less than what amounts to a half year
of activity.

Certainly, we have all had both a strange and challenging year, but from
someone not noted for being an optimist, I am excited about the coming
year and the next three years. New formats, new projects, new people, old
friends, and lots of creative problem-solving. I love it and llove my job.
Thank you for the vote of confidence in my new contract. I will see you four

times each year, but frankly I look forward to
seeing you in person soon.

l{0 Cf{, it/
C{RS irc

AREA

.l

9



County of Inyo

Planning Department
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  May 25, 2021
 
FROM:  Cathreen Richards
 
SUBJECT:  Comprehensive River Management Plan for the Amargosa Wild & Scenic River
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) receive a presentation from staff regarding the scoping period for the environmental 
evaluation of a Comprehensive River Management Plan (CRMP) for the Amargosa Wild and Scenic River; and 
B) approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign a letter commenting on the CRMP.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Barstow Field office of the Bureau of Land Management (BLM) is seeking comments (draft comment letter 
attached) on a scoping document for a Comprehensive River Management Plan (CRMP) for the Wild and Scenic 
section of the Amargosa River (attached). Approximately 23.6 miles of river, 17 of which are located in Inyo 
County, are protected under the Wild and Scenic Rivers Act (WSRA), near Tecopa (map attached). The WSRA 
requires agencies with jurisdiction over Wild and Scenic Rivers to develop a CRMP.

The development of the CRMP is subject to a lawsuit filed March 27, 2018, and a Stipulated Settlement 
Agreement filed August 14, 2018, under the WSRA stating that the Defendants (US Forest Service and BLM) 
shall issue final CRMPs under the WSRA for eights river segments, including the Amargosa River, no later than 
December 31, 2024. A CRMP addresses resource protection, development of lands and facilities, user 
capacities, and other management practices necessary or desirable to achieve the purposes of the WSRA.

The WSRA requires that the free-flowing condition, water quality, and outstandingly remarkable values (ORV) are 
protected and enhanced. Rivers designated as a Wild and Scenic River (WSR) are classified in one of three 
categories depending on the extent of development and accessibility along each section. The Amargosa  WSR 
contains examples of all three categories: wild, scenic, and recreational segments. Planning goals vary by 
segment type as follows:

1. Wild river areas – Those rivers or sections of rivers that are free of impoundments (dams, diversions, etc.) and 
generally inaccessible except by trail, with watersheds or shorelines essentially primitive and waters unpolluted. 
These rivers or sections represent vestiges of primitive America.
2. Scenic river areas – Those rivers or sections of rivers that are free of impoundments, with shorelines or 
watersheds still largely primitive and shorelines largely undeveloped, but accessible in places by roads.
3. Recreational river areas – Those rivers or sections of rivers that are readily accessible by road or railroad, that 
may have some development along their shorelines, and that may have undergone some impoundment or 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

diversion in the past.

The section of the Amargosa WSR in Inyo County is approximately 17-miles long (map attached). The segment 
north and upstream of Tecopa is a wide wash that flows intermittently is classified as Scenic. The segment south 
of Tecopa runs through the Amargosa Canyon and is classified as Wild. In addition to protecting the river channel 
a ¼ mile buffer is established by default on either side of the designated river segments. The Scoping Report is 
based on these parameters. As the planning process moves forward, the baseline boundaries may be modified.

The BLM is preparing an Environmental Assessment for all implementation actions in the CRMP. The Scoping 
Document is open for public comment from April 30 to June 1st, 2021. It proposes two Alternatives:

Alternative 1 (No Action Alternative) would mean that no CRMP would be prepared. The Amargosa WSR would 
be managed consistent with the existing management goals and objectives of the Amargosa South, Area of 
Critical Environmental Concern (ACEC), and as prescribed in the Desert Renewable Energy Conservation Plan 
(DRECP). Additionally, any activities proposed within or adjacent to the Amargosa WSR would be subject to the 
regulations set in the WSRA.

Alternative 2 (Proposed action) would adopt a CRMP for the Amargosa WSR that includes the same 
management as the no action alternative, but also includes desired conditions, standards and guidelines, as well 
as management strategies, thresholds, and projects to address key issues and achieve the purpose of the 
WSRA. Most of these actions are a repeat and continuation of the current management identified in the 
Amargosa South ACEC Plan, and the DRECP, with additional protections.

The land use designations are already in place as well as the management actions that correspond to them. The 
proposed action is a consolidation of existing laws and guidance documents (WSRA, ACEC, and the DRECP) 
and only apply to BLM managed lands. The items that will be reviewed are also prescribed and include access 
and recreation.

According to the CRMP Goals and Objections, the area that the Tonopah and Tidewater Railroad once ran 
through is included as a Historic ORV and is to be protected. Staff is recommending that the County submit a 
comment that the BLM consider a Rails to Trails program for the old Tonopah and Tidewater Railroad right of way 
as it was identified in the Draft Tecopa Community Plan.

With regard to the South Amargosa ACEC, there are several directives for acquiring and/or exchanging land with 
certain environmental characteristics for protection. Staff is recommending that the County include a comment 
addressing this with a recommendation that any purchase or exchange of private property for public ownership, 
include a one to one replacement of private property elsewhere. This will help to offset further losses of private 
property in Inyo County. There are several parcels in Tecopa that are under BLM ownership that are located 
along the Old Spanish Trail Highway and within the residential area near Tecopa Heights. These parcels were 
identified in the Draft Tecopa Community plan for future discussion with the BLM for possible land release.

The Draft CRMP/EA is estimated to be published for public review and comment from September 3rd to October 
4th 2021 during which time the planning staff will review and provide the Board of Supervisors with a summary, 
areas of concern, and recommended comments.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Bureau of Land Management
 



Agenda Request 
Page 3

FINANCING:
Costs to monitor and respond to work being conducted by other agencies are paid out the Planning Department 
budget.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. BOS Draft Scoping Comment Letter 5.25.21
2. CRMP Scoping Letter with Attachment
3. Map
 
APPROVALS:
Cathreen Richards Created/Initiated - 5/10/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/10/2021
Cathreen Richards Final Approval - 5/18/2021



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

         
 

 
 

 May 25, 2021 
 
 Bureau of Land Management (BLM) – Barstow Field Office 

Attn: Amargosa Wild and Scenic Comprehensive Management Plan 
2601 Barstow Road 
Barstow, CA 92311 
 
RE: Amargosa Wild and Scenic River, Comprehensive River Management Plan 
 
Field Manager Katrina Symons: 
 
On behalf of the Inyo County Board of Supervisors, I would like to thank the BLM for providing the 
opportunity to submit scoping comments on the Amargosa Wild and Scenic River, Comprehensive 
River Management Plan. The Amargosa River is a unique feature in the Mojave Desert, particularly 
where it runs through Inyo County. This section of the Amargosa also includes the disadvantaged 
community of Tecopa. The Board of Supervisors encourages the BLM to treat the Amargosa as the 
special place that it is, along with a balanced approach with regard to the needs of the Tecopa 
community.  
 
Inyo County has a long history of encouraging access to its natural beauty, to this end, we urge the 
BLM to strive to maintain multiple use access within the project area to the extent possible. This 
includes access to existing activities, roads and trails. We would also like to point the BLM to a Draft 
Community Plan created by and for the community of Tecopa. It can be found on the Planning 
Department webpage under Long Range Projects, Plans and Studies:  
https://www.inyocounty.us/services/planning-department/long-range-projects-plans-and-studies. 
 
The Board agrees with the area of the historic Tonopah and Tidewater Railroad being included as a 
Historic Outstandingly Remarkable Value to be protected. Based on the desires expressed in the 
Tecopa Community Plan, we would also like to encourage the BLM to evaluate a Rails to Trails 
program for the old Tonopah and Tidewater Railroad right of way from Death Valley Junction to 
Tecopa. We would also like to see the BLM work with the local communities and county staff on 
this. 
 
With regard to the South Amargosa ACEC, there are several directives for acquiring and/or 
exchanging land with certain environmental characteristics for protection. The Board strongly 
suggests that the BLM evaluate any potential loss of privately owned land to include a one to one 
replacement of BLM land to make up for it. This will help to offset further losses of private property 
in Inyo County where less than 2-percent of the land is in private ownership. There are several 
parcels in Tecopa that are under BLM ownership. These parcels are located along the Old Spanish 
Trail Highway and within the residential area near Tecopa Heights. These parcels are identified in the 
Draft Tecopa Community plan for future discussion with the BLM for possible land release and 

 
 
 
 
 
 

MEMBERS OF T HE BOARD 
DAN TOTHEROH 
JEFF GRIFFITHS 

RICK PUCCI     
JENNIFER ROESER 
M ATT  KINGS LEY      

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CLINT G. QUILTER       
Clerk of the Board 

 
 
 
 
 

DARCY ELLIS 
Assistant Clerk of the Board 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
COUNTY OF INYO 

 

P. O. BOX N  • INDEPENDENCE, CALIFORNIA 93526 
 

TELEPHONE (760) 878-0373  
e-mail: dellis@inyocounty.us 



would make good candidates for the evaluation of possible land exchanges (private/public) during 
this planning process. 
 
In closing, I would like to state again that the Amargosa River is a unique and special feature in Inyo 
County. The Board supports the appropriate management of it and encourages this be done with 
sensitivity to the surrounding communities, especially Tecopa.  
  
Sincerely, 
 
 
Jeff Griffiths, Chairperson 
Inyo County Board of Supervisors 
 
CC:  
Supervisor Rick Pucci 
Supervisor Jeff Griffiths 
Supervisor Jennifer Roeser 
Supervisor Dan Totheroh 
Supervisor Matt Kingsley 
Clint Quilter, County Administrative Officer 
Jimmy John Thompson, Chairperson Timbisha Shoshone Tribe 
 

 





































Memo 

The Barstow Field office of the Bureau of Land Management (BLM) is seeking comments on a scoping 
document for a comprehensive river management plan (CRMP) associated with the Wild and Scenic 
section of the Amargosa River. Approximately 23.6 miles of river, 17 of which are located in Inyo County, 
are protected under the Wild and Scenic Rivers Act (WSRA) near Tecopa. The WSRA requires agencies 
with jurisdiction over Wild and Scenic Rivers to develop a CRMP.  
 
The development of the CRMP was subject to a lawsuit filed March 27, 2018, and a Stipulated 
Settlement Agreement filed August 14, 2018, under the WSRA stating that the Defendants (USFS and 
BLM) shall issue final CRMPs under the WSRA for eights river segments, including the Amargosa River, 
no later than December 31, 2024. A CRMP addresses resource protection, development of lands and 
facilities, user capacities, and other management practices necessary or desirable to achieve the 
purposes of the WSRA. 
 
The WSRA requires that the free-flowing condition, water quality, and outstandingly remarkable values 
(ORV) are protected and enhanced. Rivers designated as a Wild and Scenic River (WSR) are classified in 
one of three categories depending on the extent of development and accessibility along each section. 
The Amargosa River WSR contains examples of all three categories: wild, scenic, and recreational 
segments. Planning goals vary by segment type as follows: 
 
1. Wild river areas – Those rivers or sections of rivers that are free of impoundments and generally 
inaccessible except by trail, with watersheds or shorelines essentially primitive and waters unpolluted. 
These represent vestiges of primitive America. 
2. Scenic river areas – Those rivers or sections of rivers that are free of impoundments, with shorelines 
or watersheds still largely primitive and shorelines largely undeveloped, but accessible in places by 
roads. 
3. Recreational river areas – Those rivers or sections of rivers that are readily accessible by road or 
railroad, that may have some development along their shorelines, and that may have undergone some 
impoundment or diversion in the past. 
 
The section of the Amargosa WSR in Inyo County is approximately 17 miles long. The segment north and 
upstream of Tecopa is a wide wash that flows intermittently, classified as Scenic. The segment south of 
Tecopa runs through the Amargosa Canyon is classified as Wild. In addition to protecting the river 
channel a ¼ mile buffer is established by default on either side of the designated river segments. This 
Scoping Report is based on these parameters. As the planning process moves forward, these baseline 
boundaries may be modified.  
 
The BLM is preparing an Environmental Assessment for all implementation actions in the CRMP. The 
Scoping Document is open for public comment from April 30 to June 1st, 2021. The scoping document 
proposes two Alternatives. Alternative 1 (No Action Alternative) would mean that no CRMP would be 
prepared and the Amargosa WSR would be managed consistent with the existing management goals 
and objectives of the Amargosa South Area of Critical Environmental Concern (ACEC) and prescribed in 
the Desert Renewable Energy Conservation Plan (DRECP). Additionally, any activities proposed within or 
adjacent to the Amargosa WSR would be subject to the regulations set in the WSRA.  
 
 



Alternative 2 (Proposed action) would adopt a CRMP for the Amargosa WSR that includes the same 
management as the no action alternative, but also includes desired conditions, standards and 
guidelines, as well as management strategies, thresholds, and projects to address key issues and achieve 
the purpose of the WSRA. Most of these actions are a continuation of the current management 
identified in the Amargosa South ACEC Plan, and the DRECP, with additional Protections.  
 
The planning staff has reviewed the scoping documentation and do not think that it is necessary for the 
Board of Supervisors to comment at this time due to the limited information provided in the scoping 
document and because the proposed action is a consolidation of existing laws and guidance documents 
(WSRA, ACEC, and the DRECP). The Draft CRMP/EA will be published for public review and comment 
from September 3rd  to October 4th 2021 during which time the Planning Staff will review and provide 
the Board of Supervisors with a summary, areas of concern, and recommended comments.    



SHOSHONE

TECOPA

OLD
SPA

NISH
TR

AIL

127

127

127

127

178

178

INYO

SAN BERNARDINO

¯

0 1.5 3 4.5 6
Miles

1/4 Mile Buffer

Wild

Scenic

Recreational

WSR Designation

Amargosa River

Amargosa Wild Scenic River



County of Inyo

Water Department
 

DEPARTMENTAL - NO ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  May 25, 2021
 
FROM:  Aaron Steinwand
 
SUBJECT:  Inyo County/Los Angeles Standing Committee Meeting – May 26, 2021
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board provide direction to the County’s Standing Committee representatives in advance of the meeting 
of the Inyo County/Los Angeles Standing Committee scheduled for May 26, 2021.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The next meeting of the Inyo County/Los Angeles Standing Committee will be hosted by Los Angeles 
Department of Water and Power via Webex videoconference. Pursuant to Resolution 99-43 and the Long-Term 
Water Agreement, your Board sets policy for the County’s representatives to the Standing Committee.

The final Standing Committee agenda is attached.  It is expected that the Standing Committee will be provided 
reports on runoff and operations, the annual LADWP operations plan (pumping plan), and the status of the 
McNally Ponds E/M project evaluation. The Standing Committee will set the LORP seasonal habitat flow and 
Blackrock Waterfowl Management Area flooded acreage after consultation with California Department of Fish 
and Wildlife. That agenda items includes a Technical Group recommendation to the Standing Committee to 
consider an adaptive management measure to approve implementation of a five year interim plan revising the 
management of the Blackrock Water Management Area.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
N/A
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
LADWP, California Department of Fish and Wildlife
 
FINANCING:
N/A
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Standing Committee Agenda - May 26, 2021 - FINAL
 
APPROVALS:
Aaron Steinwand Created/Initiated - 5/12/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/12/2021
Aaron Steinwand Approved - 5/12/2021
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 5/14/2021
Amy Shepherd Approved - 5/14/2021
Aaron Steinwand Final Approval - 5/18/2021



AGENDA 

INYO COUNTY/LOS ANGELES 
STANDING COMMITTEE 

11:00 a.m. 
May 26, 2021 

Webex Webinar 

The public will be offered the opportunity to comment on each agenda item prior to any action on the 
item by the Standing Committee or, in the absence of action, prior to the Committee moving to the next 
item on the agenda. The public will also be offered the opportunity to address the Committee on any 
matter within the Committee’s jurisdiction prior to adjournment of the meeting. 

 
NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 
In order to minimize the spread of the COVID-19 virus, Governor Newsom has issued Executive Orders 
that temporarily suspend certain requirements of the Brown Act. The Inyo County Water Department and 
Los Angeles Department of Water and Power offices are closed to the public, and the Standing 
Committee will conduct this meeting exclusively online. Inyo County and LADWP representatives will 
participate via videoconference accessible also to the public at:  
 

https://ladwp.webex.com/ladwp/onstage/g.php?MTID=e6ea967616b1f69b9f3c729010201db23 
 

Event number:   187 862 0528 
Event Password: 1234 
 
Individuals will be asked to provide their name and an email address in order to access the 
videoconference. Anyone who does not want to provide their email address may use ANY generic,  
non-functioning address such as: 123@123.com to gain access. 

Anyone wishing to make either a general public comment or a comment on a specific agenda 
item prior to the meeting, or as the item is being heard, may do so either in writing, or by utilizing 
the “Raise hand” feature when appropriate in the WebEx meeting (the meeting Chair will call 
on those who wish to speak). For individuals that dial into the WebEx and wish to make a public 
comment they may do so by pressing *3 to “Raise Hand”. To lower your hand, press *3 once 
again. Written public comment, limited to 250 words or less, may be emailed to: 
Francesca.Joven@ladwp.com . Your emailed comments may or may not be read aloud, but all 
comments will be made a part of the record. Please make sure to submit a separate email for 
each item that you wish to comment upon. 

 
 

1. Action Item: Approval of documentation of actions from the March 1, 2021 meeting. 
 

2. Runoff and Operations update. 
 

3. Report on LADWP’s 2021-22 Owens Valley Annual Operation Plan. 
4. Lower Owens River Project 

a. Consultation with California Department of Fish and Wildlife concerning item 4b and 4c. 
b. Action Item: Setting LORP seasonal habitat flow. 

https://ladwp.webex.com/ladwp/onstage/g.php?MTID=e6ea967616b1f69b9f3c729010201db23
mailto:123@123.com
mailto:Francesca.Joven@ladwp.com


c. Action Item: Establishment of Blackrock Waterfowl Management Area flooded acreage. 
 
5. Status update regarding McNally Ponds and Pasture Project Evaluation.  

 
6. Schedule for future Standing Committee meetings. 

 
7. Public Comment. 

 
8. Adjourn. 

 
 



Standing Committee meeting protocols (Adopted May 11, 2011) 
 

The Inyo/Los Angeles Long-Term Water Agreement (LTWA) define the Standing Committee in Section II: 
 

As agreed by the parties, the Department representatives on the Standing Committee shall include at least one (1) 
member of the Los Angeles City Council, the Administrative Officer of the City of Los Angeles, two (2) members of 
the Board of Water and Power Commissioners, and three (3) staff members. The County representatives on the 
Standing Committee shall be at least one (1) member of the Inyo County Board of Supervisors, two (2) Inyo County 
Water Commissioners, and three (3) staff members. 

 
The LTWA further provides that: 

 
Regardless of the number of representatives from either party in attendance at a Standing Committee or Technical 
Group meeting, Inyo County shall have only one (1) vote, and Los Angeles shall have only one (1) vote. 

 
The Standing Committee adopts the following protocol for future Standing Committee meetings. 

 
1. In order for the Standing Committee to take action at a meeting, representation at the meeting will consist 

of at least four representatives of Los Angeles, including one member of the Los Angeles City Council or 
Water and Power Commission, and four representatives of Inyo County, including one member of the 
Board of Supervisors. 

 
2. A Chairperson from the hosting entity will be designated for each meeting. 

 
3. In the event that an action item is on the meeting agenda, Los Angeles and Inyo County shall each 

designate one member to cast the single vote allotted to their entity at the onset of the meeting. The 
Chairperson may be so designated. Agenda items that the Standing Committee intends to take action on 
will be so designated on the meeting agenda. 

 
4. If representation at a Standing Committee meeting is not sufficient for the Standing Committee to act, the 

Standing Committee members present may agree to convene the meeting for the purpose of hearing 
informational items. 

 
5. Meeting agendas shall include any item within the jurisdiction of the Standing Committee that has been 

proposed by either party. 
 

6. The public shall be given the opportunity to comment on any agenda item prior to an action being taken. 
The public will be given the opportunity to comment on any non-agendized issue within the jurisdiction of 
the Standing Committee prior to the conclusion of each scheduled meeting. At the discretion of the 
Chairperson, reports from staff or reopening of public comment may be permitted during deliberations. 

 
7. The Chairperson may limit each public comment to a reasonable time period. The hosting entity will be 

responsible for monitoring time during public comment. 
 

8. Any actions taken by the Standing Committee shall be described in an action item summary memorandum 
that is then transmitted to the Standing Committee at its next meeting for review and approval. This 
summary memorandum shall also indicate the Standing Committee members present at the meeting where 
actions were taken. 

 
9. Standing Committee meetings shall be voice recorded by the host entity and a copy of the recording shall 

be provided to the guest entity. 
 

10. (Added February 24, 2012) The Standing Committee may also receive comments/questions in written form 
from members of the public. Either party may choose to respond, however, when responding to a public 
comment/question, whether verbally or in writing, any statements made by either party may represent the 
perspective of that party or the individual making the response, but not the Standing Committee as a whole 
(unless specifically agreed to as such by the Standing Committee). When either party responds in writing 
to public comment/question, that response will be concurrently provided to the other party. 



County of Inyo

Sheriff
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  May 25, 2021
 
FROM:  Office of the Sheriff
 
SUBJECT:  Request Board ratify and approve the 2021 USDA, Forest Service Operational Plan
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board ratify and approve the 2021 Operational and Financial Plan between the County of Inyo and 
USDA Forest Service, Inyo National Forest for the provision of Patrol Service for a funding amount up to $12,000 
for the period of October 1, 2020, through September 30, 2021, contingent upon the Board’s approval of future 
budgets, and authorize the Sheriff or designee to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Sheriff's Office provides patrol service on USDA Forest Service land annually per the agreement. The USDA 
Forest Service reimburses the Sheriff's Office for services upon completing patrols during the recreation season 
May 28th through September 30th. 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Decline to enter into the agreement.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
 
FINANCING:
Funds received under this agreement are budgeted in the Sheriff General Budget #022700, Forest Service 
Revenue Code #4693
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. 2021 USFS Patrol Service Operational and Financial Plan
 
APPROVALS:
Riannah Reade Created/Initiated - 4/29/2021
Riannah Reade Approved - 5/5/2021



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/5/2021
Riannah Reade Approved - 5/13/2021
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 5/13/2021
Amy Shepherd Approved - 5/13/2021
Jeffrey Hollowell Final Approval - 5/19/2021



 

 USDA, Forest Service OMB 0596-0217 
FS-1500-8A 

 

Page 1 of 7                                                                 (Rev. 12-13) 
 

  FS Agreement No. 20-LE-11051360-040  
Modification No. MOD 03 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
COOPERATIVE LAW ENFORCEMENT ANNUAL OPERATING PLAN & 

FINANCIAL PLAN 
Between The 

INYO COUNTY SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT 
And the 

USDA, FOREST SERVICE 
INYO NATIONAL FOREST 

 
2021 ANNUAL OPERATING AND FINANCIAL PLAN 

 
This Annual Financial and Operating Plan (Annual Operating Plan), is hereby made and entered 
into by and between the Inyo County Sheriff’s Department, hereinafter referred to as 
“Cooperator,” and the USDA, Forest Service, Inyo National Forest, hereinafter referred to as the 
“U.S. Forest Service,” under the provisions of Cooperative Law Enforcement Agreement #20-
LE-11051360-40 executed on June 10, 2020.  This Annual Operating Plan is made and agreed to 
as of the last date signed below and is for the estimated period beginning October 1, 2020 and 
ending September 30, 2021.
 
Previous Year Carry-over: $1,011.00 
Current 2021 Year Obligation: $10,989.00 
FY2021 Total Annual Operating Plan: $12,000.00 
      
 

I. GENERAL: 
 

A. The following individuals shall be the designated and alternate representative(s) of each 
party, so designated to make or receive requests for special enforcement activities. 

 
Principal Cooperator Contacts: 
 

Cooperator Program Contact Cooperator Administrative Contact 
Jeff R. Hollowell, Sheriff  
550 S. Clay St. 
P.O. Box “S” 
Independence, CA 93526 
Telephone: 760-878-0320 
FAX: 760-878-0389 
 

Riannah Reade 
550 S. Clay St. 
P.O. Box “S” 
Independence, CA 93526 
Telephone: 760-878-0326 
FAX: 760-878-0389 
Email: rreade@inyocounty.us 

 
 



 

 USDA, Forest Service OMB 0596-0217 
FS-1500-8A 

 

Page 2 of 7                                                                 (Rev. 12-13) 
 

Principal U.S. Forest Service Contacts: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Reimbursement for all types of enforcement activities shall be at the following rates unless 
specifically stated otherwise: 

 
Wages at the prevailing rate of $111.00 per patrol. 

 
II. PATROL ACTIVITIES: 

 
A. Time schedules for patrols will be flexible to allow for emergencies, other priorities, and 

day-to-day needs of both Cooperator and the U.S. Forest Service.  Ample time will be 
spent in each area to make residents and visitors aware that law enforcement officers are 
in the vicinity. 
 

B. The patrols will be conducted on a no-set-time basis during the Department’s normal 
shift assignments and usually between the hours of 6:00 PM and 6:00 AM during the 
Forest’s recreation season of May 28 to September 30, 2021.  Patrols will occur primarily 
on weekends, holidays and other high-use periods. 

 
Patrol in the following campgrounds, developed sites, or dispersed areas: 

    
1. Bishop Creek Drainage Patrols 

 Includes all recreation sites. 
 

2. Big Pine Drainage Patrols 
Includes all recreation sites. 

U.S. Forest Service Program Manager 
Contact 

U.S. Forest Service Administrative 
Contact 

Laura James, Patrol Captain 
351 Pacu Lane, Ste. 200 
Bishop, CA 93514 
Telephone: 760-873-2520 
FAX: 760-873-2563 
Email: laura.james@usda.gov 

Program Support Assistant 
351 Pacu Lane, Ste. 200 
Bishop, CA 93514  
Telephone: 760-873-2497 
FAX: 760-873-2563 
Email:  

U.S. Forest Service  
Program Coordinator Contact 

U.S. Forest Service  
Administrative Contact 

Chad Krogstad, Patrol Commander 
1323 Club Drive 
Vallejo, CA 94592 
707-562-9125 (office) 
FAX: 707-562-9031 
chad.krogstad@usda.gov 
 

Cynthia Maldonado, Admin. Assistant 
444 East Bonita Ave. 
San Dimas, CA 91773 
Telephone: 909-929-7064 
FAX: 909-592-1404 
Email: cynthia.maldonado@usda.gov 



 

 USDA, Forest Service OMB 0596-0217 
FS-1500-8A 

 

Page 3 of 7                                                                 (Rev. 12-13) 
 

  
3. Lone Pine Drainage Patrols: 
Includes Lone Pine Campground, Whitney Portal Trailhead and Picnic Area, and 
Whitney Portal Campgrounds. 

 
 
RATE SCHEDULE FOR REIMBURSABLE SERVICES 
 
 A.  RATE OF REIMBURSEMENT 
 
  1. Services provided for A.1 - maximum of 32 patrols 
  2. Services provided for A.2 - maximum of 19 patrols 
  3. Services provided for A.3 – maximum of 48 patrols 
   
    

B. FUNDS ALLOCATED 
 
  1. Section A.1 $111.00 per patrol X 32 patrols = $3,552.00 
      Section A.2 $111.00 per patrol X 19 patrols = $2,109.00 
      Section A.3 $111.00 per patrol X 48 patrols =  $5,328.00 
        Total   $10,989.00 
 
Total reimbursement for this category shall not exceed the amount of:  $10,989.00.   

 
III. TRAINING: 

See Cooperative Law Enforcement Agreement Provision IV-K for additional information. 
 
Training will be limited to work related training aimed at improving the overall efficiency of 
the enforcement and patrol activities related to this agreement between the Cooperator and the 
Forest Service. This includes training for those Officers that work in the mountainous terrain 
and County areas within the boundaries of the Inyo National Forest.  
 
Total reimbursement for this category shall not exceed the amount of: 10% of the total 
Agreement and shall be approved by the Forest Service (Designated Representative or 
Alternate Representative). 
 

IV. EQUIPMENT: 
 
See Cooperative Law Enforcement Agreement Provisions IV-K, IV-L, and IV-M for additional 
information. 
 
The Forest Service shall approve procurement of equipment to carry out the activities of this 
plan in advance.  The Cooperator, who will bear all maintenance and repair responsibility, shall 
retain title to this equipment. 
 



 

 USDA, Forest Service OMB 0596-0217 
FS-1500-8A 

 

Page 4 of 7                                                                 (Rev. 12-13) 
 

Inyo County’s request to purchase emergency equipment for the replacement patrol vehicles 
used for patrol under the Cooperative Agreement is approved.   
All other future procurement of equipment to carry out the activities of this plan shall be 
approved in advance by the Forest Service 
  
Total reimbursement for this category shall not exceed the amount of: $1,011.00, or by 
authorization of the Forest Service (Designated Representative or Alternate Representative) if 
greater expenditures are necessary. All expenditures in this category shall be approved by the 
Forest Service (Designated Representative or Alternate Representative).  
The estimated useful life of the equipment under the law enforcement agreement provisions 
IV-J and IV-D (5) shall be provided at the time the documents are filed. 
 
Total reimbursement for this category shall not exceed the amount of:  $1,011.00 
 

V. SPECIAL ENFORCEMENT SITUATIONS: 
 

A. Special Enforcement Situations include but are not limited to: Fire Emergencies, Drug 
Enforcement, and certain Group Gatherings. 
 

B. Funds available for special enforcement situations vary greatly from year to year and 
must be specifically requested and approved prior to any reimbursement being 
authorized.  Requests for funds should be made to the U.S. Forest Service designated 
representative listed in Item I-A of this Annual Operating Plan.  The designated 
representative will then notify Cooperator whether funds will be authorized for 
reimbursement.  If funds are authorized, the parties will then jointly prepare a revised 
Annual Operating Plan. 
 

1. Drug Enforcement:  This will be handled on a case by case basis. The request will 
normally come from the Patrol Captain; however, it may come from the Special 
Agent in Charge or their designated representative. Reimbursement shall be made 
at the rates specified in Section I-B. Deputies assigned to the incident will 
coordinate all of their activities with the designated officer in charge of the 
incident.  
 

2. Fire Emergency:  During emergency fire suppression situations and upon request 
by the Forest Service pursuant to an incident resource order, the Cooperator agrees 
to provide special services beyond those provided under Section II-A, within the 
Cooperator’s resource capabilities, for the enforcement of State and local laws 
related to the protection of persons and their property. The Cooperator will be 
compensated at the rate specified in Section I-B; the Forest Service will specify 
times and schedules. Upon concurrence of the local Patrol Captain or their 
designated representative, an official from the Incident Management Team 
managing the incident, Cooperator personnel assigned to an incident where meals 
are provided will be entitled to such meals.  
 



 

 USDA, Forest Service OMB 0596-0217 
FS-1500-8A 

 

Page 5 of 7                                                                 (Rev. 12-13) 
 

3. Group Gatherings:  This includes but is not limited to situations which are 
normally unanticipated or which typically include very short notices, large group 
gatherings such as rock concerts, demonstrations, and organization rendezvous. 
Upon authorization by a Forest Service representative listed in Section I-A for 
requested services of this nature, reimbursement shall be made at the rates 
specified in Section I-B. Deputies assigned to this type of incident will normally 
coordinate their activities with the designated officer in charge of the incident.  

 
This includes but is not limited to situations which are normally unanticipated or which 
typically include very short notice, large group gatherings such as rock concerts, 
demonstrations, and organizational rendezvous. 
 

VI. BILLING FREQUENCY: 
See Cooperative Law Enforcement Agreement Provisions II-H and III-B for additional 
information. 
 
The Cooperator will furnish the Forest Service with itemized monthly statements for 
expenditures.  The statement shall be in sufficient detail to allow the Forest Service to tie 
these expenditures back to reimbursable expenses and the rate schedule and shall be 
certified by the County of Inyo as being current and proper.  These statements must be 
accompanied by a Law Enforcement Activity Report, form FS-5300-5, filled out as 
required by Provision 11-G of the Cooperative Law Enforcement Agreement 20-LE-
11051360-040. 
 

A. Mail copies of itemized billing statements to: 
 
Laura James, Patrol Captain 
USFS Law Enforcement 
351 Pacu Lane, Ste. 200 
Bishop, CA 93514 
 
Send hard copy invoices to: 
 
US Forest Service 
Albuquerque Service Center 
Payments – Grants & Agreements 
101 B Sun Ave NE 
Albuquerque, NM 87109 
 
Or fax to:  877-687-4984 
 
Or e-mail scanned invoice to: sm.fs.asc_ga@usda.gov 
 



 

 USDA, Forest Service OMB 0596-0217 
FS-1500-8A 

 

Page 6 of 7                                                                 (Rev. 12-13) 
 

Final billings for reimbursement must be received by the Forest Service before October 
30, 2021 in order to receive payment.  Please see agreement provision IV-V regarding 
use of funding in succeeding years. 

 
Annually update the registration of the County Sheriff’s DUNS# on the System for 
Award Management (SAM) website at www.sam.gov for the verification of the EFT 
(Electronic Funds Transfer) banking information. 
 

B. The following is a breakdown of the total estimated costs associated with this Annual 
Operating Plan.  
 

Category Estimated Costs Not to Exceed by % 
Patrol Activities $10,989.00       
Training             
Equipment $1,011.00       
Special Enforcement Situations             
Total $12,000.00       

 
C. Any remaining funding in this Annual Operating Plan may be carried forward to the next 

FY2022 fiscal year and will be available to spend through the term of the Cooperative 
Law Enforcement Agreement, or deobligated at the request of the U.S. Forest Service. 
See Cooperative Law Enforcement Agreement Provision IV-D.  
 

D. By signature below, each party certifies that the individuals listed in this document as 
representatives of the individual parties are authorized to act in their respective areas for 
matters related to this agreement. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.sam.gov/


 

 USDA, Forest Service OMB 0596-0217 
FS-1500-8A 

 

Page 7 of 7                                                                 (Rev. 12-13) 
 

In witness whereof, the parties hereto have executed this Annual Operating Plan as of the last 
date written below. 
 

 
       
JEFF R. HOLLOWELL, SHERIFF 
Inyo County 
 
 

Date 
 
 

       
LESLEY YEN, FOREST SUPERVISOR 
U.S. Forest Service, Inyo National Forest Service 
 
  
 

Date 
 
 

DON HOANG 
Special Agent in Charge, Pacific Southwest Region  
 
 

Date 
 

 
The authority and format of this agreement have been reviewed and approved for 
signature. 
       
                                                                                                                
KAREN MCWILLIAMS 
U.S. Forest Service Grants Management Specialist 

Date 

 
Burden Statement 

 
According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, an agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to respond to a collection of information 
unless it displays a valid OMB control number.  The valid OMB control number for this information collection is 0596-0217.  The time required to complete this 
information collection is estimated to average 3 hours per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and 
maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information.   
 
The U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) prohibits discrimination in all its programs and activities on the basis of race, color, national origin, age, disability, and 
where applicable, sex, marital status, familial status, parental status, religion, sexual orientation, genetic information, political beliefs, reprisal, or because all or 
part of an individual’s income is derived from any public assistance.  (Not all prohibited bases apply to all programs.)  Persons with disabilities who require 
alternative means for communication of program information (Braille, large print, audiotape, etc.) should contact USDA’s TARGET Center at 202-720-2600 (voice 
and TDD). 
 
To file a complaint of discrimination, write USDA, Director, Office of Civil Rights, 1400 Independence Avenue, SW, Washington, DC 20250-9410 or call toll free 
(866) 632-9992 (voice).  TDD users can contact USDA through local relay or the Federal relay at (800) 877-8339 (TDD) or (866) 377-8642 (relay voice).  USDA 
is an equal opportunity provider and employer. 
 
 

 



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  May 25, 2021
 
FROM:  Marilyn Mann
 
SUBJECT:  Approve an Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between City of Los Angeles, County of Inyo, 
and Inyo Mono Advocates for Community Action (IMACA) to transfer trailers to IMACA for housing purposes; and 
approve an MOU between the County and IMACA for short-term storage of the trailer units.
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) approve a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) to transfer ownership of state-provided 
trailers between the City of Los Angeles, Inyo County, and the Inyo Mono Advocates for Community Action 
(IMACA) for homelessness relief and authorize the HHS Director to sign; and B) approve the MOU between 
IMACA and the County of Inyo regarding the temporary storage of travel trailers and authorize the HHS Director 
to sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Eastern Sierra Continuum of Care (CoC) is a local regional planning body that coordinates housing and 
services funding for homeless families and individuals.  Our local CoC includes Inyo, Mono and Alpine counties, 
as well as other stakeholders including representatives from faith-based and other service organizations, 
veterans, law enforcement, education, and homeless/formerly homeless persons.   Inyo Mono Advocates for 
Community Action (IMACA) acts in an administrative role, supporting the CoC in its regional planning and acting 
as a Collaborative Applicant for various funding sources. Your Board's HHS Director sits on the CoC and 
participates, along with other HHS team members, in the CoC by working closely with IMACA and other partners 
to coordinate and meet the needs of persons without permanent housing. The Department, in coordination with 
IMACA, is scheduling a workshop for your Board on June 8, 2021 to provide you with an overview of the 
continuum of services that are available locally.  However, we are excited to bring forward this item in advance of 
the presentation as provides the County and IMACA an opportunity to expand housing stock through a transfer of 
trailers from the City of Los Angele to the County.

Last year, as a result of the pandemic and the need to address housing of homeless persons as  part of the 
pandemic response, the State donated trailers to the City of Los Angeles.  The City of Los Angeles reached out 
to our local CoC partners as they wish to provide 20 of these trailers to support our local efforts to address 
homelessness.  This transfer will be affected through an Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Los 
Angeles, the County of Inyo, and IMACA, with the County acting as the receiving agency and passing the trailers 
through to IMACA for placement and use as housing for individuals experiencing homelessness in Inyo County. 
 Following execution of the MOU, the recipient shall complete transfer of title of the trailers to IMACA, who will 
become the registered owner of the trailers.  Proof of title paperwork will be provided to the City of Los Angeles, 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

which will trigger the physical transfer of the trailers to IMACA.  The MOU between the three entities is attached 
for your Board's consideration.

IMACA has requested the support of the County in storing these units for a period of time while IMACA works to 
locate the units on one or more properties in the county.  The second MOU for your Board's consideration is 
between the County and IMACA and would allow for the trailers to be temporarily stored on the County property 
in Big Pine, California where the former long-term care facility was located - 1001 County Road, Big Pine, CA. 
 The MOU requires IMACA to relocate the units by May 31, 2022 and has provisions for IMACA insuring the units 
and ensuring security of the units while on County property.  This storage would be provided at no cost to 
IMACA.  

Approval of these two MOU's will allow us to increase our housing capacity by 20 units and will help us in our 
efforts to support housing for our homeless individuals and families.  The Department is respectfully requesting 
your Board's approval of the MOU between the City of Los Angeles, the County of Inyo and IMACA for the 
transfer of 20 trailers and authorize the HHS Director to sign.  Additionally, we are asking your Board to approve 
the MOU between the County and IMACA for the temporary storage of the 20 trailers at no cost to IMACA 
through May 31, 2022 and authorize the HHS Director to sign.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose to deny the two MOU's which would result in Inyo County not being a recipient of the 
trailer units.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
IMACA, City of Los Angeles, faith community
 
FINANCING:
There are no fiscal obligations associated with this agenda item.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Transfer of Trailers MOU
2. IMACA Trailer Storage MOU
 
APPROVALS:
Marilyn Mann Created/Initiated - 5/12/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/13/2021
Marilyn Mann Approved - 5/13/2021
Clint Quilter Approved - 5/13/2021
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 5/13/2021
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 5/14/2021



1  

Inc., a private 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
TO TRANSFER OWNERSHIP OF STATE PROVIDED TRAILERS BETWEEN THE 

CITY OF LOS ANGELES, INYO COUNTY, AND THE INYO MONO ADVOCATES FOR 
COMMUNITY ACTION, INC. FOR HOMELESSNESS RELIEF 

 
THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (hereinafter MOU), is created 

among the City of Los Angeles, a municipal corporation (hereinafter City), and Inyo 
County, a governmental agency (hereinafter County), and Inyo Mono Advocates for 
Community Action, Inc., a non-profit agency (hereinafter IMACA or Recipient) to transfer 
ownership of State of California provided trailers in possession of the City to IMACA for 
homelessness response needs related to COVID-19. 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, in January of 2020 the World Health Organization (WHO) declared 
the outbreak of novel Coronavirus 2019 (COVID-19) a global health emergency and on 
March 11, 2020 the WHO designated the outbreak as a pandemic; and 
 

WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, the Mayor of the City of Los Angeles (Mayor) 
declared a local emergency pursuant to Los Angeles Administrative Code (LAAC) 
Section 8.21 et seq., (Declaration of Local Emergency); and 
 

WHEREAS, on March 6, 2020, the City Council approved a resolution ratifying 
the Declaration of Local Emergency; and 
 

WHEREAS, on March 3, 2020, the Governor of the State of California (Governor) 
declared a state of emergency as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, pursuant to the 
California Emergency Services Act and Section 8625 of the California Government 
Code; and 
 

WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, the Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors 
and Department of Public Health declared a local and public health emergency in 
response to the increased spread of COVID-19; and 
 

WHEREAS, between March 20, 2020 and April 2, 2020, the State donated to the 
City certain trailers, purchased by the State, to be used for the City’s homelessness 
response to COVID-19; and 
 

WHEREAS, the trailers are free from any and all liens, the City has authority to 
enter into the agreement and consummate the transfer, there is no notice of any 
violations of laws as to the trailers, no notice of any pending or threatened litigation as 
to the trailers, and no leases, service agreements or other agreements relating to the 
trailers are in effect as of the transfer date; and  
  



2  

WHEREAS, the City wishes to provide Inyo with twenty (20) trailers on a phased 
basis for public services to be rendered to those experiencing homelessness in their 
community; and 
 

WHEREAS, the use of the trailers for public service for those experiencing 
homelessness constitutes a public purpose; and 
 

WHEREAS, all or some of the trailers being transferred have been used by the 
City prior to the transfer for the City’s response to the homeless crisis and are being 
transferred as-is; and 
 

WHEREAS, use of the trailers for 24-hour homeless shelters may void the 
manufacturer’s warranties; and 
 

WHEREAS, Inyo desires to accept and utilize the trailers to provide services to 
those individuals experiencing homelessness and in need of temporary housing, 
quarantine and/or isolation due to COVID-19 and other social services; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City wishes to transfer to Inyo twenty (20) trailers for public 
services to be rendered to those experiencing homelessness in Inyo by IMACA; and 
 

WHEREAS,  in accordance with a separate agreement entered into between 
IMACA and County, IMACA will utilize the trailers to house individuals experiencing 
homelessness in Inyo County, which has been exacerbated due to the COVID-19 
pandemic, and to house those in need of temporary housing, or a location for 
quarantine and/or isolation due to COVID-19; and 
 

WHEREAS, use of the trailers for those experiencing homelessness or a need to 
isolate or quarantine due to the COVID-19 pandemic serves a public purpose by aiding 
in COVID-19 response and providing shelter; and 
 

WHEREAS, in consideration of the public purposes described above and the 
benefits provided to its citizens, County is willing to indemnify the City in the manner 
and to the degree outlined in the below provisions in order to facilitate transfer of the 
trailers to IMACA; and 

 
NOW THEREFORE, the Parties hereto covenant, represent and agree as 

follows: 
 

1. The City shall provide twenty (20) trailers to Recipient for the 
purpose of providing housing to the homeless community in Mono, Inyo and 
Alpine Counties, and to serve as facilities for isolation and/or quarantine of 
individuals affected by COVID-19.  Transfer of the trailers, identified by VIN 
number in the attached Schedule A, fully incorporated herein, shall be deemed to 
have taken place when IMACA has accepted delivery of the trailers at a time and 
place to be determined by the Parties.  The Parties understand that the list of 



3  

trailers contained within Schedule A may be modified by the Parties following 
IMACA’s inspection of the trailers should the inspection reveal that any of the 
trailers listed on Schedule A are not appropriate for the uses outlined in this 
MOU.  The Parties shall set out in writing any modifications that they wish to 
make to Schedule A.  

 
2. Recipient and the County understand and agree that the trailers 

shall be transferred to Recipient with no express or implied warranties.  The City 
expressly disclaims any warranties of fitness for purpose and merchantability.  
The City makes no representation that the trailers can be operated in any 
capacity.  Recipient shall perform any inspection it desires prior to receipt of the 
trailers, and Recipient shall accept the trailers in “as is” condition.  Recipient and 
the County releases the City from any and all claims of defect of the trailers or 
due to failure of the trailers to perform as intended by Recipient. 

 
3. Recipient and County expressly waive any and all rights under 

Section 1542 of the Civil Code of the State of California, or any other federal or 
state statutory rights or rules, or principles of common law or equity, or those of 
any jurisdiction, government, or political subdivision, similar to Section 1542 
(“Similar Provision”).  Thus, Recipient may not invoke the benefits of Section 
1542 or any similar provision in order to prosecute or assert in any manner any 
claims released. 

 
Section 1542, provides as follows: 

 
“A general release does not extend to claims which 
the creditor does not know or suspect to exists in his 
favor at the time of executing the release, which if 
known by him must have materially affected his 
settlement with the debtor.” 

 
4. County shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City, its 

officers, employees and agents, from any third party claims of personal or real 
property damage arising from the use of the trailers after transfer of the trailers to 
Recipient. Recipient shall make all necessary arrangements for the 
transportation of the trailers to its facilities. 

 
5. Recipient shall complete transfer of title in the aforementioned 

trailers to reflect IMACA as the registered owner of the subject trailers.  Proof of 
title paperwork being filed within the Recipient’s jurisdiction must be provided to 
City prior to the physical transfer of the trailers can take place. 

 
6. The contact for the City of Los Angeles shall be: Richard Coulson, 

Assistant General Manager, Fleet and Fuel Services, General Services 
Department, 111 E First Street, Los Angeles, CA 90012, (213) 928-9575, 
richard.coulson@lacity.org. 

mailto:richard.coulson@lacity.org


4  

 
7. The contact for Inyo County shall be: Marilyn Mann, Director of 

Health and Human Services, Inyo County, 163 May Street, Bishop, CA 93514, 
(760) 873-6505, mmann@inyocounty.us. 

 
8. The contact for IMACA shall be: Larry Emerson, Housing and 

Planning Director, 137 E. South Street, Bishop, CA 93514, (760) 873-7709, ext. 
1026, lemerson@imaca.net. 

 
9. This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of 

the State of California. 
 
 
 

(Signature Page to Follow) 

mailto:lemerson@imaca.net


5  

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the California State Department of General Services, 
City of Los Angeles, Inyo County, and IMACA have caused this Agreement to be 
executed by their duly authorized representatives. 
 
THE CITY OF LOS ANGELES IMACA 
 
 
By   By  _  

         TONY M. ROYSTER                ROBERT HUGHES 
          General Manager,            Executive Director, IMACA 
Department of General Services   

 
Date:   Date:   
 
 
INYO COUNTY 
 
 
By _________________________ 
                 Marilyn Mann 
Director, Health and Human Services 
                 Inyo County 
 
Date:_______________________ 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: APPROVED BY RISK MANAGEMENT: 
 
 
By  __  By       
                  GRACE CHUCHLA               AARON HOLMBERG 
               Deputy Inyo County Counsel     Risk Manager 
 
Date:   Date:   
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: ATTEST: 
 
MICHAEL N. FEUER, City Attorney HOLLY L. WOLCOTT, City Clerk 
 
 
By  __  By       
                  KIMBERLY MIERA               Deputy City Clerk 
                Deputy City Attorney  
 
Date:   Date:   



6  

SCHEDULE A 
VIN NUMBERS OF TRAILERS TO BE TRANSFERRED: 

 
 TAG #                VIN   
  
1. 300-16 4YDT16013LM935688 
2. 306-21 1UJBJ0BL6L75Z0312 
3. 310-20 4YDT20221LG105905 
4. 311-17 4X4TWDT10LE034299 
5. 312-24 4YDT24527LM936541 
6. 315-20 4YDT20224LY932372 
7. 316-17 4X4TWDT15LE034461 
8. 318-18 4YDT18027LM938369 
9. 355-17 4YDT17B1XL8938163 
10. 366-17 4YDT17B14L8938210 
11. 383-17 4YDT17B16L8938158 
12. 392-17 4YDT17B13L8938165 
13. 393-20 4YDT20229LY935140 
14. 400-18 5SFNB2211KE408351 
15. 402-20 4YDT20227LY937226 
16. 410-28 5SFPB3422LE432907 
17. 196-21 5SFPB2623LE429344 
18. 197-28 4YDT28724LX432290 
19. 274-30 5SFNB3620LN426527 
20. 96-26  4YDT2602XLG105911 



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN INYO MONO ADVOCATES 
FOR COMMUNITY ACTION AND THE COUNTY OF INYO REGARDING THE 

TEMPORARY STORAGE OF TRAVEL TRAILERS

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between Inyo County (“the County”) and Inyo 
Mono Advocates for Community Action (“IMACA”) (collectively the “Parties”) is made and 
entered into this ____ day of May 2021 to outline the temporary storage of travel trailers by 
IMACA on County property.

WHEREAS, IMACA has recently been presented with an opportunity to procure approximately 
20 travel trailers for free from the City of Los Angeles; 

WHEREAS, IMACA plans to use these travel trailers for temporary or transitional housing for 
homeless individuals, disaster victims, quarantine and isolation for COVID mitigation, and 
anyone else who may qualify for IMACA’s housing assistance;

WHEREAS, housing assistance from IMACA is in particularly high demand given the 
economic impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic and the extremely active real estate market in the 
Owens Valley; 

WHEREAS, although these trailers are being given to IMACA for free, IMACA must pick 
them up from the Los Angeles area and arrange for their storage once they arrive in Inyo 
County; and

WHEREAS, the County is interested in supporting IMACA and helping IMACA procure these 
travel trailers, as they will provide a valuable resource for homeless or at-risk residents of Inyo 
County.

The Parties therefore agree as follows:

1. IMACA may store the travel trailers that it procures from the City of Los Angeles on the 
County property located at 1001 County Road in Big Pine, CA, specifically in a location 
that will not interfere with Animal Shelter operations and in the area that was previously 
occupied by the Big Pine Sanitarium (“the Storage Site”).

2. This Storage Site shall be provided to IMACA free of charge. 
3. IMACA may store the travel trailers at the Storage Site until August 31, 2021.  Should 

the travel trailers remain on the Storage Site after August 31, 2021, the County reserves 
the right to either 1) charge IMACA a storage fee of $100 per day or 2) remove the 
trailers.  Should the County elect option #2, IMACA shall be responsible for all 
reasonable costs that the County incurs in moving the travel trailers.  

4. While these trailers are being stored at the Storage Site, they shall not be inhabited or 
used as a place of residence.

5. IMACA understands that, by providing a Storage Site free of charge, the County 
provides no guarantees as to the fitness, safety, or security of the Storage Site.  It is 
IMACA’s responsibility to insure the travel trailers, inspect the Storage Site, and 
provide any security that it deems necessary at the Storage Site.  



6. IMACA shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify the County and its officers, officials, 
employees and volunteers from and against any and all liability, loss, damage, expense, 
costs (including without limitation costs and fees of litigation) of every nature arising 
out of or in connection with this MOU, except such loss or damages which was caused 
by the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the County.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this MOU has been executed and approved and is effective and 
operative as to each of the Parties as herein provided.

Date: _____________________________ ____________________________________
Robert Hughes, Director
Inyo Mono Advocates for Community Action

Date: _____________________________ ____________________________________
Marilyn Mann, Director 
Inyo County Health and Human Services



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services - Health/Prevention
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  May 25, 2021
 
FROM:  Genoa Meneses
 
SUBJECT:  Agreement between Inyo County and Denise Marley
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board ratify and approve the agreement between the County of Inyo and Denise Marley of La Quinta, 
CA for compensation of services satisfactorily rendered to support Graphic Design & Marketing Services for 
Public Health & Prevention/COVID-19 Response activities as part of the ELC 2 & ELC Expansion Grant in Inyo 
County, in the amount of $150,000 for the period of May 15, 2021 through June 30, 2023, contingent upon the 
approval of future budgets, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures 
being obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
From the onset of the stay-at-home order, in response to the Coronavirus pandemic, Inyo County's Public Health 
& Prevention/COVID-19 Response Team has achieved basic emergency response communication with 
residents, but struggled with the timely creation, execution, and dissemination of multi-platform and bi-lingual 
communication campaigns that reach, resonate, and engage members of the community, specifically: unhoused, 
undocumented, geographically, culturally, and/or technologically isolated residents. The Public Health & 
Prevention/COVID-19 Response Team wants to continue helping families throughout Inyo County navigate 
continued COVID-19 risks, including exposures, timely testing, isolation/quarantine, comprehensible vaccine 
information, easy access to vaccines, and understanding safety guidelines and best practices as we move 
beyond the CA Blueprint for a Safer Economy. It is essential to continue creating awareness and access to Inyo 
County Public Health & Prevention programs and opportunities, to ensure the continued safety and recovery of 
our community.

In March 2021, when the Public Health & Prevention/COVID-19 Response Team received an award letter for the 
Epidemiology and Laboratory Capacity (ELC) Expansion Grant, HHS Directors and Managers discussed the 
importance of creating better communication campaigns that ensure health equity for all members of our 
community. To this end, the team approved $150,000 towards graphic design and marketing services to be 
completed in both English and Spanish for the remainder of the grant period (through June 30, 2023) to quickly 
address needs and information surrounding COVID-19, Public Health & Prevention, and Disaster Preparedness 
in Inyo County. At the March 29, 2021 Public Health & Prevention/COVID-19 Response meeting, team members 
approved a Graphic Design & Marketing Services Request for Proposals (RFP). The RFP specifics that funding 
will support the provision of graphic design and marketing services in English and Spanish to support outreach 
and communication in Inyo County during the COVID-19 pandemic. The RFP was reviewed by Inyo County 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Counsel on March 31, 2021. The RFP was published on April 1, 2021 and remained open Friday, April 15 at 
COB (5:00 pm). During the proposal period, fourteen (14) proposals were received. Once the submission period 
closed, the Graphic Design & Marketing Services Review Committee began reviewing each proposal 
completeness, depth and breadth of experience, multi-language experience, and comprehensive billing.

The Graphic Design & Marketing Services Review Committee selected Denise Marley's proposal based on its 
merits at the May 3, 2021 meeting, in the amount of $150,000.00, which shall be used to support graphic design 
and marketing services in both English and Spanish for Public Health & Prevention/COVID-19 Response 
campaigns in Inyo County. These campaigns and response efforts will focus on relevant and important 
information, upcoming adjustments, and overall recovery post-pandemic.

We respectfully request your Board approve the agreement with Denise Marley and authorize the Chairperson to 
sign.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve the agreement, which would result in the Public Health & 
Prevention/COVID-19 Response Team inability to execute a comprehensive communication plan developed 
under the ELC 2 and ELC Expansion grant funding.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
None
 
FINANCING:
Federal Funding. This contract will be budgeted in the ELC #2 budget (610390) in object code Professional 
Services (5265). No County General Funds.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Denise Marley Contract
 
APPROVALS:
Genoa Meneses Created/Initiated - 5/19/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/19/2021
Genoa Meneses Approved - 5/19/2021
Anna Scott Approved - 5/19/2021
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 5/19/2021
Marilyn Mann Approved - 5/19/2021
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 5/19/2021
Amy Shepherd Approved - 5/19/2021
Aaron Holmberg Approved - 5/19/2021
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 5/19/2021



 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 1     05/21/2019 

 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

 
AND __________________________________________________________ 

FOR THE PROVISION OF _____________________________________________________ SERVICES 

  

INTRODUCTION 

 

 WHEREAS,  the  County  of  Inyo  (hereinafter  referred  to  as  "County")  may  have  the  need  for  

the ___________________________  services  of  _____________________________________________ 

of  ________________________________ (hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"), and in consideration of 

the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and conditions hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as 

follows: 

 TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. SCOPE OF WORK. 

 The Contractor shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in 
Attachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein.  Requests by the County to the 
Contractor to perform under this Agreement will be made by _________________________________, 
whose title is: __________________________________. Requests to the Contractor for work or services to 
be performed under this Agreement will be based upon the County's need for such services.  The County 
makes no guarantee or warranty, of any nature, that any minimum level or amount of services or work will be 
requested of the Contractor by the County under this Agreement.  County by this Agreement incurs no 
obligation or requirement to request from Contractor the performance of any services or work at all, even if 
County should have some need for such services or work during the term of this Agreement. 
 
 Services and work provided by the Contractor at the County's request under this Agreement will be 

performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal, 

state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions.  Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and 

resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreement. 

2. TERM. 

 The term of this Agreement shall be from                           to                                      

unless sooner terminated as provided below.  

3. CONSIDERATION. 

 A. Compensation.  County shall pay to Contractor in accordance with the Schedule of Fees 

(set forth as Attachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A which are performed by 

Contractor at the County's request.  

 B. Travel and per diem. Contractor will not be paid or reimbursed for travel expenses or per 

diem which Contractor incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreement.  

 C. No additional consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Contractor 
shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages, 
or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement.  Specifically, Contractor shall not 
be entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits,  
retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves 
of absence of any type or kind whatsoever. 
 D. Limit upon amount payable under Agreement. The total sum of all payments made by the 
County to Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement shall not exceed 
________________________________________________________________________________ Dollars  

Graphic Design/Marketing Svcs.         Denise Marley

          La Quinta, California

                      Anna Scott
   Director of Public Health & Prevention

May 15 2021 June 30 2023

One Hundrend Fifty Thousand and zero cents

    Denise Marley

                      Graphic Design & Marketing Services



 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 2     05/21/2019 

($______________________________) (hereinafter referred to as "contract limit").  County expressly 
reserves the right to deny any payment or reimbursement requested by Contractor for services or work 
performed which is in excess of the contract limit. 
 E. Billing and payment. Contractor shall submit to the County, once a month, an itemized 
statement of all services and work described in Attachment A, which were done at the County's request.  This 
statement will be submitted to the County not later than the fifth (5th) day of the month.  The statement to be 
submitted will cover the period from the first (1st) day of the preceding month through and including the last 
day of the preceding month.  This statement will identify the date on which the services and work were 
performed and describe the nature of the services and work which were performed on each day.  Upon timely 
receipt of the statement by the fifth (5th) day of the month, County shall make payment to Contractor on the 
last day of the month.  
 F. Federal and State taxes.   
 
  (1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any federal 
or state income taxes or social security from any payments made by County to Contractor under the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement. 
  (2) County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made under this 
Agreement to non-California resident independent contractors when it is anticipated that total annual 
payments to Contractor under this Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety nine dollars 
($1,499.00). 
  (3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or 
payments from sums paid by County to Contractor under this Agreement.  Payment of all taxes and other 
assessments on such sums is the sole responsibility of Contractor.  County has no responsibility or liability for 
payment of Contractor's taxes or assessments. 
  (4) The total amounts paid by County to Contractor, and taxes withheld from payments 
to non-California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the Internal Revenue Service and the California 
State Franchise Tax Board.  To facilitate this reporting, Contractor shall complete and submit to the County 
an  Internal Revenue Service (IRS) Form W-9 upon executing this Agreement. 
 

4. WORK SCHEDULE. 

 Contractor's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in 

Attachment A which are requested by the County.  It is understood by Contractor that the performance of 

these services and work will require a varied schedule.  Contractor will arrange his/her own schedule, but will 

coordinate with County to ensure that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will 

be performed within the time frame set forth by County. 

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS. 

 A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, municipal 
governments, for contractor to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured by 
Contractor and be valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement or as otherwise may be required.  
Further, during the term of this Agreement, Contractor must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits  
in full force and effect.  Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's licenses, 
professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses.  Such licenses, certificates, and permits will be 
procured and maintained in force by Contractor at no expense to the County.  Contractor will provide County, 
upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and permits which 
are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A.  Where there is a dispute between Contractor 
and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the services identified in 
Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of this Agreement. 

150,000.00



 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 3     05/21/2019 

 B. Contractor warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for 
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any 
federal department or agency.  Contractor also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from 
receiving federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-
procurement Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: http://www.sam.gov.  
 

6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ET CETERA. 

 Contractor shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and 

telephone service as is necessary for Contractor to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this 

Agreement.  County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor, for any expense or cost incurred by 

Contractor in procuring or maintaining such items.  Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by 

Contractor in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of Contractor. 

7. COUNTY PROPERTY. 

 A. Personal Property of County. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective or 
safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this 
Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County.  
Contractor will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in 
Contractor's possession.  Contractor will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items, 
partial or total, which is the result of Contractor's negligence. 
 B. Products of Contractor's Work and Services.  Any and all compositions, publications, plans, 
designs, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer 
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual 
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or 
intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result, 
product, or manifestation of, Contractor's services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination of 
this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County.  At the termination of the Agreement, 
Contractor will convey possession and title to all such properties to County. 
 
8. INSURANCE. 

 For the duration of this Agreement Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope 

and amount specified in Attachment C and with the provisions specified in that attachment.  

9. STATUS OF CONTRACTOR. 

 All acts of Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this 

Agreement, shall be performed as independent contractors, and not as agents, officers, or employees of 

County.  Contractor, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of 

County.  Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Contractor has no authority or responsibility to 

exercise any rights or power vested in the County.  No agent, officer, or employee of the Contractor is to be 

considered an employee of County.  It is understood by both Contractor and County that this Agreement shall 

not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a 

joint venture.  As an independent contractor: 

 A. Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and 
services to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement. 
 B. Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in 
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's 
control with respect to the physical action or activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement. 
 C. Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this 
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent contractors, and not as employees of 
County. 



 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 4     05/21/2019 

 

10. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION. 

 Contractor shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify County and its officers, officials, employees 
and volunteers from and against any and all liability, loss, damage, expense, costs (including without 
limitation costs and fees of litigation) of every nature arising out of or in connection with Contractor’s 
performance of work hereunder or its failure to comply with any of its obligations contained in the 
agreement, except such loss or damages which was caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct 
of the County. 
 
11. RECORDS AND AUDIT. 

 
 A. Records.  Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various 
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, county, municipal, ordinances, regulations, and directions.  
Contractor shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion of 
this Agreement.  Contractor may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by 
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records. 
 B. Inspections and Audits.  Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any  
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Contractor, which 
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation, 
examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Contractor.  
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or otherwise evaluate the work
performed or being performed under this Agreement. 
 

12. NONDISCRIMINATION. 

 During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees shall not 

unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for 

employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national 

origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex.  Contractor and its agents, 

officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act 

(Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the 

California Code of Regulations.  Contractor shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-

352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act. 

13. CANCELLATION. 

 This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to 

Contractor thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to cancel.  Contractor may cancel this Agreement 

without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to 

cancel to County. 

14. ASSIGNMENT. 

 This is an agreement for the services of Contractor. County has relied upon the skills, knowledge, 

experience, and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement.  Contractor shall not 

assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.  

Further, Contractor shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior 

written consent of County. 



 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 5     05/21/2019 

15. DEFAULT. 

 If the Contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by 

County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by 

County, County may declare the Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days written 

notice to Contractor.  Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Contractor all amounts owing to 

Contractor for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.   

16. WAIVER OF DEFAULT. 

 Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any 

subsequent default.  Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver 

of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this 

Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-two (22) below. 

17. CONFIDENTIALITY. 

 Contractor further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws, 

regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by 

Contractor in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted, 

or confidential.  Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such information and records.  Disclosure of such 

confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only with the express written 

consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Contractor without the County’s written 
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Contractor in all respects.  

 Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social 

services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45, 

Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, 

and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant 

thereto.  For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to 

beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.  

18. CONFLICTS. 

 Contractor agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which 

would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement. 

19.   POST AGREEMENT COVENANT. 

 Contractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained 

from the County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit, 

gain, or enhancement.  Further, Contractor agrees for a period of two years after the termination of this 

Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any entity, association, corporation, or person who, 

during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has 

been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Contractor by virtue of this 

Agreement has gained access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information. 



 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 6     05/21/2019 

20. SEVERABILITY. 

 If any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be 

declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or 

county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application 

thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the 

provisions of this Agreement are severable. 

21. FUNDING LIMITATION. 

 The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.  

In the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the 

option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying 

Contractor of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding.  Any reduction or modification of 

this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-two 

(22) (Amendment). 

22. AMENDMENT. 

 This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual 

consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same 

formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity. 

23. NOTICE. 

 Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including 

change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Contractor or County shall be 

required, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first 

class mail to, the respective parties as follows: 

   County of Inyo 
                                                                          Department 
                                                                          Address 
                                                                          City and State 
 
   Contractor: 
                                                                          Name 
                                                                          Address  
                                                                          City and State 
 
24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. 

 This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements, 

promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by 

reference, shall be of any force or effect.  Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived, 

discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.  

  ////       //// 

HHS - Public Health & Prevention
207A W. South Street
Bishop, CA 93514

Denise Marley
53465 Avenida Rubio
La Quinta, CA 92253





 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 8     05/21/2019 

ATTACHMENT A 

 

  

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

 AND __________________________________________________________ 

FOR THE PROVISION OF _____________________________________________________ SERVICES 

 

 TERM: 

           FROM:                          TO:       

 SCOPE OF WORK: 

   05/15/2021       06/30/2023

    Denise Marley

                     Graphic Design & Marketing Services

Contractor will:
A. Provide their own licenses to design programs, preferred: Adobe Creative Suite;

B. Follow creative requests and design/layout content appropriately in English AND/OR Spanish, as directed;

C. Assist with other creative needs, such as email marketing (Constant Contact), website updates (Drupal), and  static 
video creation as needed (in Animoto, or similar program);

D. Package files as needed for printing and/or trafficking to media outlets; and

E. Package all final design files periodically for transfer and storage on the Inyo VPN.



 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 9     05/21/2019 

 ATTACHMENT B 

  
AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

 AND __________________________________________________________ 

FOR THE PROVISION OF _____________________________________________________ SERVICES 

 

 

TERM: 

   FROM:                              TO:    

 SCHEDULE OF FEES: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     05/15/2021     06/30/2023

     Denise Marley

                  Graphic Design & Marketing Services

For services satisfactorily rendered, and upon receipt of monthly invoices, the County agrees to compensate the
Contractor for total expenditures in an amount not to exceed $150,000.00, incurred from May 15, 2021 to June 30, 
2023, based upon services provided.

Actual graphic design and marketing service costs are to be invoiced to Public Health & Prevention lnyo County 
(ATTN: Anna Scott and Genoa Meneses) once a month, in an itemized statement that includes the date on which 
the services/work was performed, descritpion of the services/work performed (note English or Spanish), the hourly 
rate breakdown, and the total cost of all services. 

Expenditures beyond graphic design and marketing services (in english and/or spanish), like the purchasing of 
stock image(s) or simliar design elements/marketing needs, must be approved in advance with express written 
permission and included in the monthly invoice for reimbursement and include supporting documentation (receipts). 
The statement to be submitted must cover the period from the 1st of the month through and including the last day of 
the month. 

In accordance with paragraph 3. E - Billing and Payment: monthly invoices with attached expenditure information 
and fiscal receipts including supporting documentation to what is being claimed, should be received by Public 
Health & Prevention lnyo County no later than five (5) days after the end of the month. Public Health & Prevention 
retains the right to withhold payment until satisfactory receipt and review of those materials has taken place. 

lf all budget funds are paid out early in the contract period (prior to June 30, 2023), the contract will be considered 
complete and invoices with a zero balance do not need to be submitted. The County retains sole discretion to renew 
for additional terms, without a competitive bid process, subject to contractor performance, continued funding 
availability, and Health and Human Services (HHS) - Public Health & Prevention approval. 

lnvoice Due Dates: the first business day of the month, but no later than five (5) days after then end of the month. 

Budget:
Graphic Design and Marketing Services Work: in English - $40/hr 
Graphic Design and Marketing Services Work: in Spanish - $45/hr
Total Budget $150,000



 County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 116  
 (Independent Contractor) 
 Page 10     05/21/2019 

 

ATTACHMENT  C 

 

 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 

AND __________________________________________________________ 

FOR THE PROVISION OF _____________________________________________________ SERVICES 

 

TERM: 

 

   FROM:                              TO:     

 

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

05/15/2021       06/30/2023

   Denise Marley

                Graphic Design and Marketing Services



Attachment	C:	Insurance	Requirements	for	HHS	Provider	Services	
 

 

County of Inyo Insurance Standards – HHS Provider Services, 20210406 

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims 
for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the 
performance  of  the  work  hereunder  by  the  Contractor,  its  agents,  representatives,  or 
employees.  
 
MINIMUM	SCOPE	AND	LIMIT	OF	INSURANCE		
Coverage shall be at least as broad as:  
 
Commercial	General	Liability  (CGL):  ISO Form CG 00 01  covering CGL on an  “occurrence” 
basis,  including  products  and  completed  operations,  property  damage,  bodily  injury,  sexual 
misconduct,  and  personal  &  advertising  injury  with  limits  no  less  than  $1,000,000  per 
occurrence.  If a general aggregate  limit applies, either  the general aggregate  limit shall apply 
separately to this project/location (ISO CG 25 03 or 25 04) or the general aggregate limit shall 
be twice the required occurrence limit. The CGL policy shall contain, or be endorsed to contain, 
additional insured status as specified as follows.  

 
Additional Insured Status. Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers 
are  to  be  covered  as  additional  insureds  on  the  CGL  policy with  respect  to  liability 
arising out of work or operations performed by or on behalf of the Contractor including 
materials, parts, or equipment  furnished  in connection with such work or operations. 
General  liability  coverage  can  be  provided  in  the  form  of  an  endorsement  to  the 
Contractor’s insurance (at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or if not available, 
through the addition of both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37 if 
a later edition is used).  

 
Automobile	Liability: ISO Form Number CA 00 01 covering any auto (Code 1), or if Contractor 
has no owned autos, hired  (Code 8), and nonowned autos  (Code 9), with  limit no  less  than 
$1,000,000 per accident  for bodily  injury and property damage. May be waived with  signed 
letter on Contractor’s letterhead certifying that no vehicle or mobile equipment will be used in 
the execution of the agreement.  
 
Workers’	Compensation:  as  required by  the  State  of California, with  Statutory  Limits,  and 
Employer’s Liability  Insurance with  limit of no  less  than  $1,000,000 per  accident  for bodily 
injury or disease. May be waived with signed  letter on Contractor’s  letterhead certifying that 
Contractor has no employees. 
 
Professional	Liability:  Insurance  as  appropriate  to  the  Contractor’s profession  (errors  and 
omissions, medical malpractice,  etc.), with  limit  no  less  than  $1,000,000  per  occurrence  or 
claim, $3,000,000 aggregate. Professional  liability  insurance  coverage  is normally  required  if 
Contractor  is  provided  a  professional  service  regulated  by  the  state;  however,  other 
professional  contractors,  such  a  computer  software  designers  and  claims  administration 
providers,  should  also  have  professional  liability.  Check  with  Risk  Management  if  PL  is 
required.  
 
Cyber	 Liability	 Insurance,  with  limits  not  less  than  $1,000,000  per  occurrence  or  claim, 
$2,000,000  aggregate.  Cyber  liability  requirement may  be waived  if  Contractor will  not  be 



Attachment	C:	Insurance	Requirements	for	HHS	Provider	Services	
 

 

County of Inyo Insurance Standards – HHS Provider Services, 20210406 

receiving/storing/transmitting  personally  identifiable  information  (PII)  or  personal medical 
information (PMI). Coverage shall be sufficiently broad to respond to the duties and obligations 
as is undertaken by Contractor in this agreement and shall include, but not be limited to, claims 
involving  infringement  of  intellectual  property,  including  but not  limited  to  infringement  of 
copyright, trademark, trade dress, invasion of privacy violations, information theft, damage to 
or destruction of electronic information, release of private information, alteration of electronic 
information,  extortion  and  network  security.  The  policy  shall  provide  coverage  for  breach 
response costs as well as regulatory fines and penalties as well as credit monitoring expenses 
with  limits  sufficient  to  respond  to  these  obligations.  Check with Risk Management  if  CL  is 
required. 
 
If the Contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums shown 
above,  Inyo County requires and shall be entitled  to  the broader coverage and/or  the higher 
limits maintained by the Contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified 
minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to Inyo County.  
 
OTHER	INSURANCE	PROVISIONS		
The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:  
 
Primary	Coverage		
For any claims related  to  this contract,  the Contractor’s  insurance coverage shall be primary 
coverage at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 as respects Inyo County, its officers, officials, 
employees,  and  volunteers. Any  insurance  or  selfinsurance maintained  by  Inyo  County,  its 
officers, officials, employees, or volunteers  shall be excess of  the Contractor’s  insurance and 
shall not contribute with it.  
 
Notice	of	Cancellation		
Each  insurance policy  required above  shall  state  that  coverage  shall not be  canceled, except 
with notice to Inyo County.  
 
Waiver	of	Subrogation		
Contractor hereby grants to Inyo County a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer 
of said Contractor may acquire against Inyo County by virtue of the payment of any loss under 
such  insurance. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect 
this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not Inyo County 
has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.  
 
Self-Insured	Retentions		
Selfinsured  retentions must be declared  to and approved by  Inyo County.  Inyo County may 
require the Contractor to purchase coverage with a lower retention or provide proof of ability 
to pay losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses within the 
retention. The policy  language shall provide, or be endorsed  to provide,  that  the selfinsured 
retention may be satisfied by either the named insured or Inyo County.  
 
Acceptability	of	Insurers		
Insurance  is  to  be  placed with  insurers  authorized  to  conduct  business  in  the  state with  a 
current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to Inyo County.  



Attachment	C:	Insurance	Requirements	for	HHS	Provider	Services	
 

 

County of Inyo Insurance Standards – HHS Provider Services, 20210406 

 
Claims	Made	Policies	(should	be	applicable	only	to	professional	liability)	
If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claimsmade basis:  
1. The Retroactive Date must be  shown and must be before  the date of  the  contract or  the 

beginning of contract work.  
2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five 

(5) years after completion of the contract of work.  
3. If coverage is canceled or nonrenewed, and not replaced with another claimsmade policy 

form with  a  Retroactive  Date  prior  to  the  contract  effective  date,  the  Contractor must 
purchase “extended reporting” coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of 
contract work.  

 
Verification	of	Coverage		
Contractor  shall  furnish  Inyo  County  with  original  Certificates  of  Insurance  including  all 
required  amendatory  endorsements  (or  copies  of  the  applicable  policy  language  effecting 
coverage required by this clause) and a copy of the Declarations and Endorsement Page of the 
CGL policy listing all policy endorsements to Inyo County before work begins. However, failure 
to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Contractor’s 
obligation to provide them. Inyo County reserves the right to require complete, certified copies 
of all required insurance policies,  including endorsements required by these specifications, at 
any time.  
 
Subcontractors		
Contractor shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the 
requirements  stated  herein,  and  Contractor  shall  ensure  that  Inyo  County  is  an  additional 
insured on insurance required from subcontractors.  
 
Special	Risks	or	Circumstances		
Inyo County  reserves  the  right  to modify  these  requirements,  including  limits, based on  the 
nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances. 

end 



County of Inyo

Probation
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  May 25, 2021
 
FROM:  Jeffrey Thomson
 
SUBJECT:  Request Board ratify and approve Agreement Number BSCC 964-21 between the County of Inyo 
and Board of State Community Corrections (BSCC) for the Prop 64 Grant. Request the Board of Supervisors 
review and adopt a Resolution. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) ratify and approve the agreement between the County of Inyo and Board of State Community 
Corrections (BSCC) for the Proposition 64 Public Health and Safety Grant for the period of May 1, 2021 though 
October 31, 2024, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being 
obtained; and B) approve Resolution No. 2021-29 authorizing the Inyo County Assistant CAO to execute 
agreements with the BSCC on behalf of the County of Inyo for the Proposition 64 Public Health and Safety Grant 
awarded April 8, 2021.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Inyo County Probation Department and Health and Human Services Department applied for the grant and 
was notified that we were approved for funding of $779,537 for a period of three (3) years to be used as 
proposed in the application attached. Funding will be used to provide many youth programs including:

 Prevention programs (arts and entertainment) for elementary students
 Inyo Council for the Arts partnership
 Outdoor program for youth (contracting with an established outdoor adventure program).
 Enhance and expand the mentor program.
 Develop a peer mentor program
 Afterschool sports program
 Farm to table program using local community gardens

The funding is contingent on approval from your Board to enter into the attached standard agreement.

Board Resolution: On April 8, 2021, Inyo County was awarded a Proposition 64 Public Health and Safety Grant 
from the Board of State and Community Corrections in the amount of $779,537 for the implementation of youth 
development/youth prevention and intervention projects identified in the attached standard agreement. As a 
condition of Grant acceptance, the Inyo County Board of Supervisors is required to adopt a resolution 
designating staff to execute agreements with the Board of State and Community Corrections.



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
The  Board  of  State  and  Community  Corrections  (BSCC) announced the  release  of  the
Proposition 64 Public Health and Safety (Prop 64 PH&S) Grant Program Cohort 2, Request for
Proposals (RFP). The Prop 64 PH&S Grant Program directs revenue from the cultivation and sale of
cannabis to projects that promote public health and safety.

Eligible applicants for the Prop 64 PH&S Grant Program are local governments (i.e., Counties,
Cities,  and  City/County)  in  California  that  do  not  ban  both  indoor  and  outdoor  
commercial cannabis cultivation, or retail sale of cannabis or cannabis products.

In order to accept grant funds, the Board of Supervisors is required to adopt a resolution authorizing staff to 
execute the agreements with the BSCC.
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could choose not to ratify the standard agreement or adopt the resolution. This is not recommended 
as the standard agreement and the resolution are required in order for grant funding to be provided to Inyo 
County.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Auditor Controller, personnel, Health and Human Services, and County Counsel.
 
FINANCING:
A separate budget (Prop 64 Grant: 620210) has been created and will be used upon approval of the agreement).
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. BSCC Standard Agreement
2. BOS Resolution for Prop 64 Grant
 
APPROVALS:
Krystal Leonard Created/Initiated - 4/22/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 4/26/2021
Krystal Leonard Approved - 5/17/2021
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 5/18/2021
Amy Shepherd Approved - 5/18/2021
Krystal Leonard Approved - 5/18/2021
Jeffrey Thomson Final Approval - 5/18/2021



SCO lD: 5227-8SCC96421
STATE OF CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES

STANDARD AGREEMENT
STD 213 (Rev 03i2019)

AGREEMENT NUMBER

BSCC s64-21
PURCHASING AUTHORITY NUMBER (lf Appticabte)

BSCC-5227
1. This Agreement is entered into between the Agency and the Contractor named below:
CONTRACTING AGEN CY NAME

BOARD OF STATE AND COMMUNITY
CONTRACTOR NAME

INYO COUNTY
2. The term of this

CORRECTIONS

Agreement is
START DATE

MAY 1,2021
THROUGH END DATE
ocToBER 31,2024

3. The maxim um amount of this Agreement is:

$779,537
4. The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions of

by this reference made a part of the Agreement.
the following exhibits, attachments, and appendices which are

EXHIBITS
Exhibit A

Exhibit B
Exhibit C

Exhibit D

Attachment 1*

Attachment 2
Appendix A
Appendix K

* This item is hereby t ncorporated by reference and can be viewed at:

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THIS AGREEMENT HAS BEEN EXECUTED BY THE PARTIES HERETO.

PAGES

3

4

4

4

26

2

1

CONTMCTOR NAME (if other

GOUNTY OF INYO
than an individual, state

CONTRACTOR
a corporation, partnership, etc.)whether

TITLE
Scope of Work

I and Payment provisionsBudget Detai

(04t20itionsTermsGeneral Conand d 7)
Special Terms and Conditions

Safety (Prop Req
P ition 64 blicPu Hropos ea &Ith 64 P &SH Grant uest Pfor roposals
Prop 64 PH&S Grant Proposal
Prop 64 PH&S Scoring panel

Organization's Receiving (attached separately)
forCriteria Non-Governmental BSCC Fun Sd

CONTRACTOR BUSINESS ADDRESS
163 Street

PRINTED NAME OF PERSON SIGNING
LESLIE CHAPMAN
CONTRACTOR AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE

ztP
93514

6 &,^t>&

TITLE

Assistant CAO
DATE SIGNED

4 zZL
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

CONTRACTING AGENCY NAME

BOARD OF STATE AND COMMUNITY CO RRECTIONS

CITY

Bishop
STATE

CA

CONTRACTI NG AGENCY ADDRESS
2590 Venture Oaks Way, Suite 200
PRINTED NAM E OF PERSON SIGNING
RICARDO GOODRIDGE
CONTRACTING AG ENCY AUTHO RIZED SIGNATURE

.6

ztP
95833

TITLE

Deputy Director
DATE SIGNED

CITY

Sacramento
STATE

CA

CALIFORNIA,DEPARTMFNT OF G ENERAT v\aMPT. P ER EQM,,, V.AUJM e l,:Q.H,'4;06,



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-29

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, 
COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING THE INYO 

COUNTY ASSISTANT CAO TO EXECUTE AGREEMENTS WITH THE 
BOARD OF STATE AND COMMUNITY CORRECTIONS ON BEHALF OF 
THE COUNTY OF INYO FOR THE PROPOSITION 64 PUBLIC HEALTH 

AND SAFETY GRANT AWARDED APRIL 8, 2021

WHEREAS, Inyo County desires to participate in the Proposition 64 Public 
Health and Safety Grant Program funded through the California State and Local 
Government Law Enforcement Account and administered by the Board of State 
and Community Corrections (hereafter referred to as the BSCC). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Assistant County 
Administrative Officer be authorized on behalf of the Inyo County Board of 
Supervisors to submit the grant proposal for this funding and sign the Grant 
Agreement with the BSCC, including any amendments thereof. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that grant funds received hereunder shall not be 
used to supplant expenditures controlled by this body. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Inyo County agrees to abide by the terms and 
conditions of the Grant Agreement as set forth by the BSCC. 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED by the Inyo County Board of 
Supervisors in a meeting thereof held on May 25, 2021 by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 

                                                 
_______________________________________________

                                                  Jeff Griffiths, Chairperson
                                                  Inyo County Board of Supervisors

ATTEST:

CLINT QUILTER
Clerk of the Board

By:  ________________________________
         Darcy Ellis, Assistant



County of Inyo

Public Works
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  May 25, 2021
 
FROM:  Jacob Trauscht
 
SUBJECT:  Ratify the payment to Spiess Construction Company Inc. for completion of the South Lake 
Emergency Road Repair Work.
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board ratify and approve payment to Spiess Construction Inc. of Santa Maria, CA in the amount of 
$237,900 for South Lake Road Emergency Repair Work.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Spiess Construction Company Inc. of Santa Maria, CA completed the emergency work of reconstructing the 
damaged portion of South Lake Road on May 3, 2021, installing a subsurface drainage system that resolved the 
saturated road base issue.  This work was considered an emergency as the start of the busy summer season at 
South Lake Road is important for the local economy, and delaying the work would have resulted in increased 
cost and disturbance due to the need for traffic control. 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:

When clearing snow on South Lake Road in preparation for summer opening it was discovered that the road was 
failing along a portion approximately 1.3 miles below South Lake.  Upon further investigation it was determined 
that a saturated road base caused the failure, and that rebuilding the road with a subsurface drainage system 
would be required to prevent further damage.  Due to the economic importance of recreating at the South Lake 
Site and the fact that the narrow, mountainous nature of the road makes it almost impossible to repair the road 
without closing it to the recreating public, it was determined that this constituted an emergency repair, and a 
simple set of plans and specs were put together by the Public Works Department, and distributed it to three local 
contractors via an expedited bidding process.  Spiess Construction was the Low Bidder at $232,000, with 
Construction Specialty of Lee Vining, CA at $470,260 and Qualcon of Minden, NV at $471,600.  Spiess began 
the work on April 26, 2021 and completed the work on May 3, 2021. 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could choose not to ratify the payments, however this is not recommended as Spiess performed the 
work quickly and allowed the County to safely open the road and prevent costly repairs during the busy summer 
season. 
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
 
FINANCING:

This project will be paid out of budget 034600-5700 (Road - Construction in Progress). Funding for this project is 
included in the 3rd quarter budget.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Bid Results
2. Spiess Invoice Signed
3. South Lake Road Repair Justification
 
APPROVALS:
Jacob Trauscht Created/Initiated - 5/12/2021
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/12/2021
Jacob Trauscht Approved - 5/13/2021
Breanne Nelums Approved - 5/13/2021
Michael Errante Approved - 5/13/2021
Amy Shepherd Approved - 5/13/2021
Marshall Rudolph Final Approval - 5/20/2021









Invoice No.:

AZ #119975 • CA #333989 • N¥#0038929

22111-01

Spiess Construction Co., Inc. P.O. Box 2849
Santa Maria, CA 93457-2849

(805) 937-5859
Fax (805) 934-4432

County oflnyo
225 N. Edwards St
Independence, CA 93526

Invoice Date:
Period Ending:

05/12/21
05/12/21

Job: South Lake Road Emergency Restoration Work

Original Contract Value:

Change Orders:

Revised Contract Value:

Completed & Stored To Date:

Less Retention:

Total Earned Less Retention

Less Previous Requests for Payment

Current Amount Due:

$237,900.00

0.00

$237,900.00

$237,900.00

(11,895.00)
226,005.00

0.00

$226,005.00

Verification of Quantities

By, Date:
Jake Trauscht

Inyo County

CONTRACTOR
u..

By: ^^^ Date: 05/i .̂/^a
Jeff Da^idson, Controller

Spiess Construction Co., Inc.

Jake Trauscht 5-12-2021

jtrauscht
Highlight



$CCi
PO Box 2849

Santa Maria, CA 93457

Project: South Lake Road Emergency Restoration

SCHEDULE OF VALUES

SPIESS CONSTRUCTION CO., INC.

Progress Payment Number: 01

Date: 05/12/21

Qty Total Qty Total Qty Total
ITEM Contract Unit Total Complete Complete Complete Complete Complete Complete
NO. DESCRIPTION Qty UOM Price Contract Previously Previously This Period This Period To Date To Date

1.00 Mobilization 1 LS 12,000.00 $12,000.00 0% $0.00 100% 12,000.00 100% $12,000.00

.ALOO--RO-adwa-YJJ3staiLatlon-Cno--asPi2alt)------^

.-3-J30--HolMlxASPhM--------------________________l_________LS______50i°^^^^^

.4LOO--Drajipj£e-lislaJlcltLon----------------------j-80^

5.00 Extra Work 1 LS 5,600.00 $5,600.00 0% $0.00 100% 5,600.00 100% $5,600.00

Total Original Contract Value $237,900.00 $0.00 $237,900.00 $237,900.00

Total Earned:

5% Retention:

•us Payments:

Amount Due:

Previous

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Current

237,

($11,

$226,(

,900.00

,895.00)

0.00

,005.00

Total To Date

$237,900.00

($11,895.00)

$0.00

$226,005.00



South Lake Road – Emergency Repair Justification 
 
The South Lake Road Rehabilitation project was completed under a Federal Lands Access Program 
(FLAP) grant during the summer of 2020, with design and construction oversite performed by the 
Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) and construction completed by Hat Creek Construction of 
Susanville, CA.  This project consisted of reconstructing South Lake Road, including all pullouts and 
parking areas, from Highway 168 to its terminus at South Lake.  FHWA formally accepted the project on 
November 2, 2020.  
 
On April 1, 2021, while preparing to reopen the road, Inyo County Road Foreman Shannon Platt noticed 
two (2) areas of the road were beginning to fail, as indicated by cracks through the asphalt.  On April 5, 
2021, Public Works Director Mike Errante, Deputy Director Chris Cash and the County representative for 
the project Travis Dean met onsite to evaluate the situation.  It was observed that the failing sections of 
the road are located in an area containing natural springs, and that the road likely began failing due to 
saturation of the road and sub-grade, which can weaken the road structure resulting in cracks and 
uneven road surfaces.  Attached is a map and photos of the damage.    
 
On the afternoon of April 5, 2021, Travis Dean reached out to FHWA to inquire about a warranty for the 
design and construction of the road. FHWA responded the next morning, stating that “projects do not 
include warranties, so once we’ve given our contractors final acceptance of the project, there is no 
opportunity to address issues that arise after construction unless there is a latent defect with the work.” 
(See attached Email Correspondence).  
 
While Public Works will continue to pursue additional funding through FHWA, this may be a lengthy 
process. In lieu of this, Public Works would like to perform a permanent restoration as soon as possible 
to avoid further damage to the road, and so that the road can be safely opened for the upcoming fishing 
and hiking seasons, as South Lake is one of the most popular trailheads in the Bishop Area.   
 
Public Works is proposing to hire a contractor to install underdrains in the areas which will alleviate 
saturated conditions within and beneath the road, preventing future damage.  This is a proven solution 
that has been effective on Onion Valley Road, as well as on South Lake Road itself, as indicated by a lack 
of cracking in areas that received underdrains (including between the two failing locations).  
 
Inyo County Road Crews could simply patch the cracks, however this will not solve the underlying issue, 
and could lead to catastrophic damage to the road during the busy holiday season. Completing this work 
as soon as possible, prior to the road opening for the summer season, will significantly reduce cost by 
eliminating the need for traffic control, and allowing the contractor to repair the entire width of the 
road at once rather than one lane at a time. 
 
 
  



 

  



 

 



 
 



 

 
 



 

 



1

Travis Dean

From: Longley, Wendy (FHWA) <Wendy.Longley@dot.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, April 6, 2021 5:54 AM
To: Travis Dean
Cc: Gonzalez, Julian S. (FHWA)
Subject: RE: South Lake Road

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the Inyo County Network. DO NOT click links or open attachments 
unless you recognize and trust the sender. Contact Information Services with questions or concerns. 

Travis, 
 
Our projects do not include warranties, so once we’ve given our contractors final acceptance of the project, there is no 
opportunity to address issues that arise after construction unless there is a latent defect with the work.  If I am looking 
at the photos correctly, this is around Station 349.  I remember we spent considerable time working on a solution with 
the FS and County at this location trying to address the water coming off the slope.  This was an area with a large 
amount of water coming down the old FS road and running down the slope adjacent to the road.  It is a tight bench 
through here with the creek and wetlands on the fill side.  The scope of the project through this section was really 
limited due to funds and limited bench width to a rehabilitation effort and not a full reconstruct.  We added the rock 
embankment and paved ditch to protect the slope and roadway edge at the location of the surface water runoff from 
the FS road above.  We also added underdrain to catch some of the subsurface water and direct that to the new DI and 
culvert. 
 
During construction our field staff would have evaluated any unusually wet subgrades and evaluated need for subex as 
well.  In reviewing the as‐built drawings, it looks like a portion of the U/D was removed (downstation from the culvert), 
likely due to encountering rock.  Otherwise this section was built per plan. 
 
I know this isn’t the response you were probably looking for, but unfortunately, this would be a County maintenance 
issue. 
 



2

 



3

 
Wendy Longley, PE, PMP 
Project Management Branch Chief  
FHWA‐CFLHD 
12300 W Dakota Ave, Suite 380 
Lakewood, CO 80228 
720‐963‐3394 
 
Note:  Currently full‐time teleworking, I can be reached at the number above or by email. 
 
We are hiring Project Managers!  Come join our team! 
 

From: Travis Dean [mailto:tdean@inyocounty.us]  
Sent: Monday, April 5, 2021 5:14 PM 
To: Longley, Wendy (FHWA) <Wendy.Longley@dot.gov> 
Cc: Gonzalez, Julian S. (FHWA) <julian.gonzalez@dot.gov> 
Subject: South Lake Road 
 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the Department of Transportation (DOT). Do not click on links or open attachments 
unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 

 

Hi Wendy, 
 



4

Our Road Foreman was up at South Lake Road and noticed 2 sections of the road that were starting to fail (see 
attached photos). The sections are near sta. 320+00 - 330+00. I have some more pictures and a video I can send 
you through our FTS site if you would like to see more. 
 
I was wondering what the warranty for this project was. I went through our files, but couldn’t find reference to 
one. We can keep the road closed for the rest of the month to fix this, but once fishing opener happens, we will 
get lots of pressure to open the road, which means we could only repair one lane at a time. The sections that are 
failing are next to natural springs, so I think that we would need to open up the entire width of the road to 
engineer a way for the water to escape, otherwise the water will continue to undermine the roads structural 
integrity.  
 
Thank You, 
 
Travis Dean 
Engineering Assistant 
Inyo County Public Works 
168 N. Edwards 
PO Drawer Q 
Independence, CA 93526 
Phone: 760-878-0203 
Fax: 760-878-2001 
E-mail: tdean@inyocounty.us 
 

 
 
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its contents may contain confidential and/or legally 
privileged information.  It is solely for the use of the intended recipient(s). Unauthorized interception, review, 
use or disclosure is prohibited and may violate  applicable laws including the Electronic Communications 
Privacy Act. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the 
communication. 
 



County of Inyo

Clerk of the Board
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  May 25, 2021
 
FROM:  Assistant Clerk of the Board
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the minutes of the regular Board of Supervisors meeting of May 18, 2021.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Board is required to keep minutes of its proceedings. Once the Board has approved the minutes as 
requested, the minutes will be made available to the public via the County’s webpage, www.inyocounty.us.
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
N/A
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A
 
FINANCING:
 
ATTACHMENTS:
 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 5/19/2021
Darcy Ellis Final Approval - 5/19/2021


	 Call to Order
	1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE (Join meeting via Zoom here)
	2. PROCLAMATION - Board approval and reading of a pro
	Memorial Day 2021

	3. PUBLIC COMMENT
	4. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS (Reports limited to two 
	5. COVID-19 STAFF UPDATE

	 Departmental - Personnel Actions
	6. Request Board find that, consistent with the adopt
	Agenda Request Form

	7. Request Board: A) change the Authorized Strength i
	Agenda Request Form


	 Consent Agenda
	8. Request Board appoint Ms. Melinda DeCoster to a fo
	Agenda Request Form
	Melinda DeCoster - BP Cemetery (2021)
	Rosemarie Todd - BP Cemetery

	9. Request Board approve a contract between Christoph
	Agenda Request Form
	Film Commissioner Contract FY21-22 to FY23-24
	20180626CAO-FilmComm. - ChrisLangleyContract

	10. Request Board approve Amendment No. 1 to the contr
	Agenda Request Form
	TFG Amendment 1
	20180626 TFG LLC Federal Advocacy Services

	11. Request Board award Bid No. 2021-07 - Print Bid to
	Agenda Request Form

	12. Request Board approve the contract with Waste Mana
	Agenda Request Form
	Waste Management of California, Inc. Contract

	13. Request Board approve the contract between the Cou
	Agenda Request Form
	Pahrump Valley Disposal Contract

	14. Request Board approve the contract between the Cou
	Agenda Request Form
	Dr. Goshgarian SUD Medical Director Contract FY21-22
	Qualified Service Organization/Business Associate Agreement 

	15. Request Board: A) declare VSS Emultech of Bakersfi
	Agenda Request Form
	RD21-04  Bid Tab
	VSS Emultech Bid

	16. Request Board: A) declare Seal Master of Bakersfie
	Agenda Request Form
	Bid Tab RD 21-06
	Bid Package

	17. Request for Purchase
	Agenda Request Form
	RD21-05 Bid Tab
	Bowman Asphalt Bid


	 Departmental
	18. Request Board accept Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Written
	FY 2020-2021 Film Commission Report

	19. Request Board: A) receive a presentation from staf
	Agenda Request Form
	BOS Draft Scoping Comment Letter 5.25.21
	CRMP Scoping Letter with Attachment
	Map

	20. Request Board provide direction to the County’s St
	Agenda Request Form
	Standing Committee Agenda - May 26, 2021 - FINAL

	21. Request Board ratify and approve the 2021 Operatio
	Agenda Request Form
	2021 USFS Patrol Service Operational and Financial Plan

	22. Request Board: A) approve a Memorandum of Understa
	Agenda Request Form
	Transfer of Trailers MOU
	IMACA Trailer Storage MOU

	23. Request Board ratify and approve the agreement between the County of Inyo and Denise Marley for Graphic Design & Marketing Services
	Agenda Request Form
	Denise Marley Contract

	24. Request Board: A) ratify and approve the agreement
	Agenda Request Form
	BSCC Standard Agreement
	BOS Resolution for Prop 64 Grant

	25. Request Board ratify and approve payment to Spiess
	Agenda Request Form
	Bid Results
	Spiess Invoice Signed
	South Lake Road Repair Justification

	26. Request Board approve the minutes of the regular B
	Agenda Request Form


	 Comment
	27. PUBLIC COMMENT

	 Board Members and Staff Reports

	Jeff R Hollowell Sheriff 550 S Clay St PO Box S Independence CA 93526 Telephone 7608780320 FAX 7608780389: 
	Program Support Assistant 351 Pacu Lane Ste 200 Bishop CA 93514 Telephone 7608732497 FAX 7608732563 Email: 
	Patrol Activities: 
	Not to Exceed by 1098900: 
	1098900Training: 
	Not to Exceed by Training: 
	Equipment: 
	Not to Exceed by 101100: 
	101100Special Enforcement Situations: 
	Not to Exceed by Special Enforcement Situations: 
	Total: 
	Not to Exceed by 1200000: 
	JEFF R HOLLOWELL SHERIFF: 
	Date: 
	LESLEY YEN FOREST SUPERVISOR: 
	Date_2: 
	DON HOANG: 
	Date_3: 
	KAREN MCWILLIAMS: 
	Date_4: 
		2021-04-27T16:18:50-0700
	LESLEY YEN


		2021-03-22T09:30:00-0700
	KAREN MCWILLIAMS




